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Ottawa, Ontario / Ottawa (Ontario)
--- Upon resuming on Wednesday, April 15, 2009
at 9:35 a.m. / L'audience reprend le mercredi

15 avril 2009 & 9 h 35

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Good morning,
counsel. Good morning. Be seated, please.
Mr. Schreiber, I remind you that you

are still under oath, sir. Thank you.
PREVIOUSLY SWORN: KARLHEINZ SCHREIBER /

SOUS LE MEME SERMENT : KARLHEINZ SCHREIBER

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr. Wolson.

MR. WOLSON: Thank you, sir.

Just before we start I want to advise
you, sir, that Mr. Schreiber -- and he knows this --

will be recalled at a later time, sometime in May. I
can't recall the dates presently, but he will be
recalled in May and, as well, he has standing in Part
IT.

So it is important that Mr. Schreiber
be available on those dates and I'm sure that you would
want him available on those dates.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Is there a
concern that he won't be available?

MR. WOLSON: Well, not from

Mr. Schreiber's perspective, but you should, in my
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view, request and order that he be here on the dates in
May and that he be available for Part II.

You may want to think about that and
take that under advisement, but I want to raise that
with you now.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr. Schreiber
is here subject to a subpoena --

MR. WOLSON: That is so.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: -- which, as
far as I'm concerned, remains in force until the
Commission excuses him.

Are you suggesting that something
further may be required to ensure his continued
attendance?

MR. WOLSON: I think your comments
are well taken. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: All right.

MR. WOLSON: Secondly, with the
consent of Mr. Auger, I would like to file as an
exhibit in the cause the summary of the interview of
Mr. Schreiber, by consent.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: Good morning,

Mr. Schreiber.

MR. SCHREIBER: Good morning,
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counsel.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Before you
proceed, Mr. Wolson, I just want to formalize that if
we could.

That will be Exhibit P-8 then, the
summary of the statement. That is by consent of all
counsel?

Mr. Pratte...?

MR. PRATTE: (Off microphone) .

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Right.

EXHIBIT NO. P-8: Summary of
interview statement of Mr.
Schreiber
EXAMINATION: KARLHEINZ SCHREIBER BY MR. WOLSON
(continued) / INTERROGATOIRE : KARLHEINZ SCHREIBER PAR
Me WOLSON (suite)

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Schreiber, just to
recap, you met Prime Minister Mulroney at Harrington
Lake on the 23rd of June?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, sir.

MR. WOLSON: You made an agreement
for the future?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, sir.

MR. WOLSON: That he would perform

certain services on your behalf and that he undertook
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to support the efforts in obtaining approval for the
establishment of a production facility for light
armoured vehicles by Bear Head Industries?

MR. SCHREIBER: Not for me, for
Thyssen Bear Head Industries.

MR. WOLSON: I'm using the exact

wording of your affidavit.

MR. SCHREIBER: I see.

MR. WOLSON: Which you swore as the
truth.

MR. SCHREIBER: As the Chairman of

the company.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. You swore the
affidavit.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. I just wanted
to get the right understanding. It was not personal
service for me, it was in my job with Bear Head.

MR. WOLSON: Again, I am using your
document which you swore as true.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, okay. Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You then met
Mr. Mulroney at Mirabel on the 27th of August '93, as
agreed at Harrington Lake on the 23rd of June, and you
hired Mr. Mulroney to lobby on behalf of Bear Head to

establish a plant in Montréal East.
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4997 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
4998 MR. WOLSON: You told Mr. Roitenberg
when he interviewed you, you said the following, page
2, the last paragraph on the page. I will read it to
you.
"Mr. Schreiber provided details
about the meetings at Harrington
Lake, Mirabel Airport, the Queen
Elizabeth Hotel and the Pierre
Hotel. The meeting at
Harrington Lake and their
subsequent meetings all related
to the establishment of a plant
for Thyssen in Montréal."
(As read)
4999 MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct, sir.
5000 MR. WOLSON: By the way, as to your
statement that we just filed as an exhibit, you read it
over, you made a few corrections and in effect we have
the truth?
5001 MR. SCHREIBER: Which statement are
you referring to?
5002 MR. WOLSON: The one that you gave to
Mr. Roitenberg in my office.

5003 MR. SCHREIBRER: Yes, that's correct.
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MR. WOLSON: I want to refer you to

Eurocopter, November 24, 2004.
You testified under oath.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Page 59, November 24,
2004. A question by Mr. Bernstein, the prosecutor.
You were asked this question and did you give this
answer:
"Have you subsequently hired
elected government officials
were part of the government,
elected government officials
were part of the government
between 1985 and to 1993 and
subsequently hired them?"
Answer:
"No, not between, in 1993.
In '93?
Yes.
When in '937?

Oh, I think it was close to

any

who

who

you

December or even -- maybe even

194 . " (As read)

Were you asked those questions and

did you give those answers?
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Page 60, top of the
"Who was that, sir? Who were
they? Who were these people?"

You said:

"This was Mr. Mulroney."

(As read)

Were you asked those questions and

did you give those answers?

MR.

MR.

SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON :

"Anybody else? ©No. And he
dealt with his position to make
it very simple for you, Mr.
Bernstein, as a member of the
Board of Midland Archer Daniels.
Midland Archer Daniels, it's a
huge American company dealing
with food and agriculture

products." (As read)

Were you asked those questions and

did you give those answers?

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

"MR. BERNSTEIN: Was there any

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

504

discussion respecting this

hiring before January of '94°?2"

Answer:

"No and yeah. In '93 perhaps.
I'm not too convinced whether
that was this particular case.
You asked me whether I did. I
had many things in mind. I told
you I wanted to hire Mr.
Mulroney for Thyssen to be doing
the same thing he's doing now
and it would have been a nice
thing to have a previous
Canadian Prime Minister on a
peacekeeping track for Thyssen
products again this government
wanted the German companies to
do. I would have been very
happy if he would have done
this. Unfortunately, we had no
chance for that, but yes, I was
involved in the pasta business
and enriched durum semolina
products and this is the moment

when I spoke to him about Archer
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Daniels and he provided me with
some materials." (As read)

Did you make those answers to those
guestions?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. It refers to
'94 and activities in Europe.

MR. WOLSON: Well, first of all, why
didn't you tell the prosecutor that you hired
Mr. Mulroney for Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, this is
included, but for the Thyssen project.

MR. WOLSON: No, Mr. Schreiber,
that's not what you said. You said you hired him to
deal with your pasta business.

Why didn't you tell the judge in
Eurocopter that you hired him to deal with Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: In my mind it was the
first thing we did, that the brochures he gave me for
Midland Archer Daniels, and that was in '94, and until
then nothing has happened.

MR. WOLSON: You hired Mr. Mulroney,
you just told the Commissioner, you made an agreement
in 1993 at Harrington Lake and you hired him August 27,
'93 for Bear Head.

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct.
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MR. WOLSON: Why didn't you tell that
to the judge?

MR. SCHREIBER: It dealt all with MBB
and I thought there is no need for me to say that.

MR. WOLSON: If it dealt with MBB,
why are you talking about the pasta business?

MR. SCHREIBER: That was in '94 when
he gave me the brochures.

MR. WOLSON: I see. That's your
answer, 1is 1it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: My suggestion to you is
that you weren't telling the truth at this hearing at
Eurocopter when you were under oath.

What do you say to that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No.

At page 60:

"I wanted to hire Mr. Mulroney
for Thyssen to do the same thing
he is doing now." (As read)

What he was doing in 2004 when you
testified, is he was lobbying internationally.

MR. SCHREIBER: Was this a question,

internationally?

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5041

5042

5043

5044

5045

5046

5047

5048

5049

507

MR. WOLSON: My suggestion to you is
that you knew Mr. Mulroney was acting for companies on
an international basis in 2004.

MR. SCHREIBER: Not only.

MR. WOLSON: I see. You talked not
of an agreement that you made at Harrington Lake for
Bear Head. What you said at page 61 were these
comments:

Question:

"These thoughts or this idea you
had, this plan that we are
talking about, what time?"

Answer:

"After Mulroney has left
government." (As read)

Did you make that answer?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why didn't you tell the
judge about the agreement that you made at Harrington
Lake?

MR. SCHREIBER: I saw no need for it
because it all dealt with MBB, and when you look at the
transcript Judge Belanger stopped it all the time and
wanted to keep it exactly where it is. And all those

qguestions were dealt with already at the Ethics
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Committee and you saw the answers.

MR. WOLSON: You know, Mr. Schreiber,
I would love to use the Ethics Committee in my
cross-examination of you, but I can't. You know that
and I know that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Aren't the
transcripts public?

MR. WOLSON: They are. They are. As
a matter of fact, you wrote a letter about it.

I could remind you of it if you want
me to, but rather than having this discussion I can't
use those transcripts, but I can use the transcript
from Eurocopter where you didn't give truthful answers.

MR. SCHREIBER: I see it different,
but what can I do.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. By the way,
yesterday I asked you about donations that you gave to

political parties and I referred you to Book 2, Tab

146T.

You might want to just grab that.
Book 2.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Tab 1461I.
--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: And just before I go
there, you told the Commissioner yesterday that the
pasta business didn't start until 1998. Yes...?

MR. SCHREIBER: In Canada, vyes.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

You hired Mr. Mulroney for Europe?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it was related to
the durum semolina stuff where Archer Daniels is a
great -- what can I say -- purchaser of these products.

MR. WOLSON: What year did you hire
him?

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: What year did you hire
him?

MR. SCHREIBER: Whom?

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Mulroney.

MR. SCHREIBER: It started in '94
when he gave me these brochures from Archer Daniels.

MR. WOLSON: I see. But yesterday
you told the judge, the Commissioner here, that it was
'98.

MR. SCHREIBER: What?

MR. WOLSON: That you started that
business.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, for Canada.
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MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Mulroney had
nothing to do with the development of the machines in
the pasta in Europe.

MR. WOLSON: Book 2, Tab 146. Do you
have it out?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: This was the political
donations and I was asking you about them yesterday.

Do you have that in front of you, Tab
14617

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: At October 12th you had
the five entries?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You said that you
learned about it sometime later.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Look at October 11lth.
It's on the same page.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes...?

MR. WOLSON: It says "Jorgen
Haastert" --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes...?

MR. WOLSON: -- "$30,000."
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: TIt's the same 30,000
that these donations add up to.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You knew it obviously on
the 11th of October.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. The point is --
and I thought about this -- somebody must have told me
that Thyssen tries to donate to the Liberal party and
they wrote down the names of who would be a recipient.
This added up to $30,000.

I must have spoken to Mr. Haastert
and Mr. Massmann about it and that, but it never
materialized.

MR. WOLSON: Never materialized?

MR. SCHREIBER: Never.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: Now, yesterday I
could not recall, because I was too tired yesterday
afternoon, where I learned about it.

It was at the Ethics Commission when
Mr. Martin and the lawyer from Québec both asked me
about the donations to the Liberals and I was surprised
because I didn't recall anything on it. And then I

said it must have been Mr. Alford who did this, because
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the Ethics Commission people had the information from
Elections Canada about the donations and it was
$10,000.

And then when Mr. Alford was asked
from the people from the Ethics Commission, he
confirmed that he has cut the cheque for $10,000 from
Bear Head for the Liberals.

MR. WOLSON: And that's why it's in
your diary on October 1lth and October 12th, about two
weeks before the election?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. I see -- I told
you right now, they must have asked me who could be it
or this was a discussion, but that did not materialize.

MR. WOLSON: I see. All right, sir.

MR. SCHREIBER: And I didn't recall
this at all. I mean for me it was not important.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr.
Schreiber, could I ask you to pull the microphone a
little closer to you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: That's
better, thanks.

MR. SCHREIBER: Thank you.

MR. WOLSON: Yesterday you talked

about the struggles of Bear Head with government;
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right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You signed the UIP
September 27, 19887

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: In Book 1, Tab 50 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Book 1, Tab 50, yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- there is a letter
from Mr. McKnight from the Department of National
Defence.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: This is the letter
summarized in a line or two where he tells you that the
government is prepared to let your company bid on light
armoured vehicles and that it is a five-year period
that you could bid.

You recall that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But yet Mr. Fowler, who
was the Deputy Minister, had told you from the
beginning -- and I showed you yesterday a document
where you complained to the Prime Minister,

Mr. Mulroney, that you weren't going to get this
project.

You recall that document?
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MR. SCHREIBER: No, he didn't tell me
this.

MR. WOLSON: Well, let's take a look
at Tab 67A, Book 1.

MR. SCHREIBER: Sixty-seven, yes.

MR. WOLSON: I think I have referred
you to the wrong document. Just hold on for one
moment.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: I will come back to that
in a moment because I'm having trouble finding the
document, but I will come back to that.

But let me ask you --

MR. SCHREIBER: Perhaps you can tell
me what the document is. I may know it offhand.

MR. WOLSON: Oh, I'll find it.

That's fine.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay.

MR. WOLSON: Thank you for the offer,
though.

You talked yesterday of wanting a
memo of understanding, a memorandum of understanding.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: In Book 1, Tab 60 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: Do you have that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: A Memorandum of
Understanding.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. Yes.

MR. WOLSON: If you look at the back
of that document, page 5, this is the document that you
wanted; right?

You wanted the government to give you
a Memorandum of Understanding?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But if you look at the
back of that document there are only two signatures on
that document.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: There is your friend
Elmer MacKay --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and your name,
Karlheinz Schreiber.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: There is no signature
for the Minister of Defence.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Do you know why?
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MR. SCHREIBER: I think this
agreement did not go to the final stage. That
agreement that was finally signed is different, with
different people. 1It's a different time.

MR. WOLSON: So you couldn't get
Mr. McKnight to sign?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, i1t was not a
discussion with Mr. McKnight.

This was -- Mr. Wolson, this was not
my job. That was the job of ACOA to get that done.

MR. WOLSON: And who was the head of
ACOA at that time?

MR. SCHREIBER: It could be
Mr. MacKay or Mr. Murray.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. So that was -- as
a matter of fact, Mr. MacKay signs as being from ACOA,
you will see.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but later on
when the next agreement was signed --

MR. WOLSON: Yes...?

MR. SCHREIBER: -- letter of intent,
it was not Mr. MacKay any more. It was somebody else.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ever get a
Memorandum of Understanding?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: Oh, you got one?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. But that didn't
help you. You had a UIP --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- you had a Memorandum
of Understanding --

MR. SCHREIBER: And the letter from
Mr. McKnight.

MR. WOLSON: -- and the letter from
Mr. McKnight.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you had everything
from government that seemed to indicate that you were
going to get Bear Head done?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. And, by the
way, when you refer to Mr. Fowler, it was in the very
early stage when I had the first meeting with him where
he told us that Canadians don't need equipment which
has protection against chemical and biochemical warfare
and things like this. It was much earlier.

So I reported about that meeting to
Mr. McKnight. So this was at a much earlier stage.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. But you also

reported it to the Prime Minister; 67A, if you would
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Six-seven

--- Pause

A, okay.

you wrote

MR.

MR.

Minister.

MR.
MR.

A. Not 167,

MR.
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please, Book 1.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Page 2 in your letter to

SCHREIBER: Book 1, 677

WOLSON: Sixty-seven A.

but 67, Book 1.

SCHREIBER: Sixty-seven and then

Yes. Now I have it.

MR. WOLSON: This i1s a letter that

to Prime Minister Mulroney?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.
WOLSON: April 19, 1991.
SCHREIBER: Yes, sir.

WOLSON: That would be after the

letter that you got from Mr. McKnight which came in

January of 19907

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So in 1991, April 19th,

you are writing to the Prime Minister at page 2:

"Lastly, about the comments of
Mr. Fowler who told us from the
beginning that we 'are not going

to get this project'..."
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Do you see that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, this is what I
learned from Peter White. Mr. Fowler never told me
that.

MR. WOLSON: You don't say that in
your letter.

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, Fowler told us
that he wouldn't take this cause for the obvious
reasons, but he didn't say you're not going to get the
project. That was not even in his decision.

MR. WOLSON: So on the one hand
you've got the government giving you encouraging
documents --

MR. SCHREIBER: And the Generals.

MR. WOLSON: -- and then on the other
hand you have other people in government being quite
negative and ultimately you not getting the project at
all.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Now, yesterday you
talked about a number of meetings you had with the
Prime Minister.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You said how easy it was

to get access to him.
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SCHREIBER:

Yes.

You weren't even living

You were a German businessman

living for the most part in Germany and you had open

access to the Prime Minister?

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Well,

was a German-Canadian businessman.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

first of all T

Second, I had

business all over the world and travelled, and I came

here occasionally at my home and whenever I came and

wanted to talk to him it was possible.

MR. WOLSON:

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Moores, GCI, or Fred Doucet.

MR. WOLSON:

How?

Either through Frank

made it happen whenever you wanted it?

Minister agreed.

--- Pause

March 3rd letter

MR.

MR. WOLSON:

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

-- Book 3, Tab 24.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Page 2.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

StenoTran
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MR. WOLSON: This is a letter that
you wrote on March 3rd, 2008; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: On the second page you
indicate that on October 20, 1988, Thyssen AG paid a $2
million success fee concerning the Understanding in
Principle to IAL, in trust for GCI.

Do you see that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Then you have
underlined, and in black, darker than the rest of the
print:

"This $2 million was divided
amongst Mr. Mulroney and his
friends as follows:..."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You indicate that on
November 2, ~88, Frank Moores deposited a half a
million dollars to a Swiss bank account code named
Frankfurt.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"...concerning the Thyssen Bear
Head Project and the Right

Honourable Brian Mulroney."
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"Mr. Mulroney would know that
this money was marked for him."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: That would seem to
indicate that the $500,000 was for services done in the
past, not in the future.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it was related to
the document of understanding, and if the project would
have materialized, yes, it's my understanding that Mr.
Mulroney would have been entitled to get that money
from Mr. Moores.

MR. WOLSON: But this money was put
aside once the UIP was signed.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Doucet got $90,000
when the UIP was signed.

MR. SCHREIBER: We discussed this
yesterday --

MR. WOLSON: That's right.

MR. SCHREIBER: -- they all have done
their work, for years.

MR. WOLSON: I see. So the money was

paid to certain parties, and half a million dollars was
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put in a trust account for Mr. Mulroney.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

I don't know whether it was a trust
account, but it was left in the Frankfurt account, and
Mr. Moores agreed that this was money which should stay
there.

MR. WOLSON: You neglected to say in
that letter that it would stay there if Bear Head
succeeded.

You indicated, or seem to indicate in
your letter, that once the UIP was signed, certain
people -- or you say that the money was divided amongst
Mr. Mulroney and his friends.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Was the $500,000, which
you put aside for Mr. Mulroney, of which $300,000 was
paid -- was it for past services or future services?

MR. SCHREIBER: Future services.

As I told you yesterday, the whole
thing didn't materialize.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: And I found out
later -- and that's the first time -- that the $500,000
was parked for Mr. Mulroney; the first time that I

learned that we have to keep it for Bear Head until it
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works.

MR. WOLSON: How many loans did you
broker for Mr. Moores?

You talked yesterday of a $1 million
loan. Was that the only loan that you were involved in
for Mr. Moores?

MR. SCHREIBER: To my recollection,
yes.

MR. WOLSON: You brokered that
through Thyssen?

MR. SCHREIBER: Thyssen gave the
loan, yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you said yesterday
that you were prepared, if Mr. Moores wouldn't give the
$500,000, because he didn't want to give the $500,000
to put into the Britan account --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- that he could forget
about half of the money that he owed.

MR. SCHREIBER: If he wanted.

MR. WOLSON: If he wanted.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him, on
behalf of Thyssen, for the whole million back at a

later time?
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MR. SCHREIBER: No, there was no
need, because the money, in the meantime, belonged to
me. Thyssen forgave the loan.

MR. WOLSON: Was that $500,000 used;
that is, did you tell Moores: All right, forget about
that half-million, I will cover it, it's going to go to
Britan?

That's what you said yesterday. Is
that the truth?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, I told you
yesterday that I asked him -- "I need that money,"
which was reserved there.

And, as I told you also, he
disagreed.

MR. WOLSON: If you turn to Book 2,
Tab 118 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- this is a letter that
you wrote on December 27th, 1995.

That is your signature on the bottom?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: It says:

"Dear Frank:
Re: Loan in the amount of Can.$

1 million - Project Thyssen Bear
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Head."

Do you see that?

SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You say:

"On March 12, 1992 Thyssen
Industries through myself
granted you a loan in the amount
of Can.$ 1 million at an
interest rate of 4% p.a."

SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"The loan as well as the accrued
interest should be compensated
through services provided by you
in connection with the Bear Head
project....

Unfortunately we did not
succeed to build the plant for
Thyssen Bear Head as planned.
The order for armoured vehicles
was placed as a sole sourced
order by DND with General
Motors...as had been all
previous orders. This means a

repayment of the loan granted to
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you.
I would appreciate it very
much if you could let me know
until the end of the year, how
you intend to arrange for a
repayment.
I very much regret that the
project could not be closed..."
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.
MR. WOLSON: Mr. Moores, you said
yesterday, was told that he could forget about half a
million dollars. As you said, you put it into the
Britan account, and you told Moores to forget about it.
Why are you asking for the money back?
MR. SCHREIBER: I sent this letter to
Mr. Moores because it was not clear whether he would
take the $500,000, because he had the moral obligation,
like I had, with Thyssen; and this letter he wanted
from me at this time, otherwise I would not even have
written it, because he had a voluntary disclosure with
Revenue Canada and he wanted to show that this million
was a loan, that they should not get the idea it's
income.
MR. WOLSON: Yesterday you testified

that, because you thought you had a moral
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responsibility, you said to Mr. Moores: Forget about
half a million dollars, take it off the loan of a
million dollars and we will put it into the Britan
account.

That was your testimony yesterday.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I said -- I asked
him, he said no, and I said: Look, I have to take the
money. I have to get my chance, and if you want, you
can take it away from the million loan I gave you.

This is what I said.

MR. WOLSON: Yes, but then you asked
for the money back.

MR. SCHREIBER: I knew that he
couldn't pay it back. This letter he wanted, I repeat
it now, because he wanted it for Revenue Canada with
his -- what do they say -- confidential disclosure, to
show that this is a million loan, not income.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr. Wolson,
excuse me, I would like to ask a question if I might.

MR. WOLSON: Sure.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: The million
dollars referred to here in the loan includes, I take
it, the $500,000 that was to go to Britan?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: It has
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nothing to do with that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it has nothing to
do with that.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Because I
note in the letter that you wrote at Tab 118 that you
refer to the loan to Mr. Moores as being for services
provided by him.

Look at the second full paragraph.
--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't get it, sir,
when you say "provided by him".

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: By Mr.
Moores.

MR. SCHREIBER: To whom?

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Well, I don't
know, it's your letter. That's what I am asking.

--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: I refer to services
of his, if he would continue to provide services for
Bear Head. This is what it meant.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: But this was
1995, wasn't Bear Head dead in the water?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: It wasn't?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.
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COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Okay.

Mr. Wolson...

MR. WOLSON: We read the letter
yesterday --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: I read you the letter
from Mr. Lalonde of 1995.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You agreed with me that
Bear Head was dead in 1995.

MR. SCHREIBER: The earliest part we
knew about it was August 1995.

In your files you have a letter from
the Canadian ambassador that it is still on from May or
June 1995.

MR. WOLSON: You see, I don't quite
understand. You are asking Mr. Moores to repay the
million, plus interest, of which you had forgiven half
a million dollars. That's what you said in your
testimony yesterday.

Something changed, did it?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. I will try
again.

I asked Mr. Moores to agree that T

take the $500,000; he said no. I said: I take it
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anyway. I cannot afford that I will not take the last
chance for Thyssen in Quebec. I owe this to Thyssen.
And if you don't agree and you don't want to go for it,
you may want to deduct it from my loan.

He never said that he would, and when
he asked me for this letter, he wanted this letter
exactly the way it is, so that he could use it with
Revenue Canada, that he owes $1 million to me.

MR. WOLSON: So you were prepared to
help him with Revenue Canada, that's why you wrote the
letter.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but this is
what he said to me, and I did it.

MR. WOLSON: Yesterday I asked you
about statements you made to Mr. Kaplan, and you took
issue with some of the statements as not being true.

And yesterday I asked you about how
you got back from Harrington Lake, and you said that
you were with a young staffer in his Jeep, and I
referred you to part of "A Secret Trial", in which Mr.
Kaplan notes, based on an interview with you, that you
came back in a limousine.

You recall that from yesterday?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but I never

came back in a limousine.
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MR. WOLSON: Yeah.

And yesterday I asked you about Mr.
Kaplan and his note that the $500,000 that you put in
Britan, you told Mr. Kaplan, came from Thyssen, that
they gave you an additional $500,000, and you said that
was wrong.

MR. SCHREIBER: Absolutely.

MR. WOLSON: But you have in your
statement, which you have read, and you say is correct,
and is Exhibit P-8, at page 5 -- what you said to Mr.
Roitenberg is this:

"He stated that his statements
to Peter Mansbridge, in a
“Mansbridge One-on-One'
interview, and the interview, as
provided, to "As It Happens'
were the truth. Similarly, his
statements to Bill Kaplan were
true." (As read)

Did you make that statement to Mr.
Roitenberg?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but I have no
idea of what all I spoke to Mansbridge or to Kaplan.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you make that

statement?
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MR. SCHREIBER: Which one?

MR. WOLSON: That your statements to
Kaplan were true.

MR. SCHREIBER: Because I had no
reason to lie.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: But by that time I
did not know what you are telling me there. I recall
what I told him, but not what he is writing down
somewhere.

And I cannot get it, what is the
importance when I read this story that the limousine
went out of the gate and the stones flew up. I don't
get it.

MR. WOLSON: Well, I'm sorry that you
don't. All I am asking for you to do is tell this
Commissioner the truth --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and I am pointing out
where you say one thing in one place, and another in
another place.

So I'm sorry that you don't get it,
but I am going to move on to the next topic.

I want you to look at Book No. 3 --

and I apologize for going back and forth to different
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books. There is a lot of documentation, and we have
tried to streamline it, but...
Do you have Book 37

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. I want to ask you

about a meeting -- this, too, is from Mr. Kaplan, in an

interview that you had with him on the 11th of
November, 1998.

MR. SCHREIBER: Which tab is that?

MR. WOLSON: Tab 1, Book 3.

If you look at the first page, it
says, "Interview with K. Schreiber on Nov. 11/98."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Let's see if this one is

accurate.
You start off, on the first page:
"With respect to Paul
Tellier..."

Do you see that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You make a statement
about Mr. Tellier, and look at the second paragraph.
want to ask you about this:

"Anyway, there was this meeting.

I was there with Doucet.
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Mulroney attended the first part
of the meeting and then left.
So it was just the three of us.
Me, Tellier and Fred Doucet. I
heard about what Mulroney had
already said in Cabinet, namely,
that we are going to do
something for Nova Scotia. This
is on the record. You can see
the documents for yourself.
Anyway, before he left Mulroney
says at this meeting "I want
this thing to happen.'"
He was referring to Bear Head.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Is that an accurate
portrayal? Did that happen?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: I referred you yesterday
to Tab 78 in Book 1.
I will read it to you, so you don't
have to go back and forth.
This is a letter that you wrote to
the Prime Minister on May 6th, 1992. It says at the

top, "Dear Prime Minister", and at the bottom it has,
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"Warm personal regards" and your signature.

5357

5358

5359

We talked about this yesterday.

It says:

"I would like to thank you very
much for finding the time to

meet with me yesterday..."

So that would have been the day

before you wrote the letter, which would have been May

5, 1992.

5360

second paragraph.

"...especially when you are so
busy with the constitutional
issue. I was also greatly
heartened by your sympathetic
understanding of the situation
and your determination to set

things in train."

And I am going to read to you the

"As you recommended, we are now
working on a 2 page summary of
the actions necessary to realize
the project as you would like to
see it. To deliver the exact
figures will take a few days and

we will present them to you next
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week. The activity we will
engage in the next few days
includes an investigation of the
situation for establishment of
the project in East Montreal."

So, number one, it was a
recommendation from Mr. Mulroney to do a two-page
summary .

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Secondly, you indicate
that you want to realize the project as the Prime
Minister would like to see it.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: The Prime Minister then
was moving, or made a suggestion to you to move the
project to Montreal, obviously.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: 1In Atlantic Canada you
had the support of Mr. MacKay --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- you had the support
of Mr. Murray -- Lowell Murray --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- but in Quebec --

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I had also
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support from the provincial government and Premier

Buchanan --

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: -- as well as from
the Liberal MPs -- Francis LeBlanc.

I had all of that.

MR. WOLSON: Yes, but in Quebec, when
the project moved to Quebec, you had very quickly
onside -- we talked about it yesterday -- Mr. Masse.

He was onside. He was helpful --

MR. SCHREIBER: Who?

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Masse -- M-A-S-S-E.

Marcel Masse.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: You didn't have him --

MR. SCHREIBER: He was a new
minister.

MR. WOLSON: Well, you had meetings
with him. We went to the meetings yesterday.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but I didn't
know him before.

MR. WOLSON: Okay, but I am saying,
when the project was moving to Montreal --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- very quickly you had
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a number of ministers --

supportive.

Bouchard, Mr.

Minister --

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: -- who were very

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Marcel Masse, Mr.

Charest, Mr. Corbeil, the Prime

MR.

MR.

things happened, and

while.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: So, very, very quickly

it looked good for Bear Head for a

SCHREIBER: Yes.

I felt very comfortable with Quebec

because I had a very good relationship with Mr.

Bourassa before.

also had Mr.

Lalonde.

very quickly.

MR.

WOLSON: You had that, and you

Mulroney, who was very strong in Quebec.

MR.

MR.

So

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: And, also, I had Mr.

WOLSON: Yes, and Mr. Lalonde.

the waters were parting for you

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Did you expect -- when
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you gave Mr. Mulroney the first $100,000 at Mirabel,

did you expect to get a receipt at some point from him?
MR. SCHREIBER: I left it with him.

I thought he would.

MR. WOLSON: Did you expect it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, more or less.

I didn't care that much about it. If
he would have given me a receipt, it would have been
good enough.

Or, if he would have billed, finally,
for services he did.

MR. WOLSON: Either way, there would
have been some kind of document that your company, Bear
Head, could have used.

MR. SCHREIBRER: Sooner or later, yes.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

Did you ask him for a receipt?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Or a statement of
account?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: It would be
understandable at the first meeting, at Mirabel, that
you just let things go. You gave him the money, and he

agreed to work for you on Bear Head, and you left it at
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that.

MR. SCHREIBER: And I explained to
you yesterday why.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. Okay.

You had a second meeting with Mr.
Mulroney.

Your answer is yes?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Were there any meetings
that you recall between the Mirabel meeting of August
27th, 1993 and the second meeting that you had, which
was --

It was at the Queen Elizabeth in
Montreal, wasn't it?

MR. SCHREIBER: I have no
recollection of another meeting.

MR. WOLSON: You recall meeting at
the Queen Elizabeth --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- but when you say that
you have no recollection of another meeting, you are
saying that between the two meetings you don't recall
another meeting.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

No, I don't think so.
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MR. WOLSON: All right. You never
called him to say: Hey, Brian, what are you doing for
me? Are you making some progress?

You had a lot of money at stake here.

Did you do that, did you call him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

Mr. Wolson, I told you yesterday, we
had a very good relationship, and I told you all the
reasons, and it was in front of Christmas, and they
lost the election.

And I had all the confidence that Mr.
Mulroney could help me in Quebec with all his
influence.

MR. WOLSON: Of course.

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't know whether
you would have bothered him and said: What are you
doing now with my money?

It's not my habit.

People around the world can tell you
that it's not my habit to bother people for money. I
help, and that's it.

MR. WOLSON: Yeah. Most people who
give someone else $100,000 for future services would
call them and say: Are you doing something? What's

happening?
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But you never --
MR. SCHREIBER: No.
MR. WOLSON: That's not your nature.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, no, it depends on

what the relationship is, very much.

Elizabeth

MR. WOLSON: I see. All right.

The second meeting at the Queen

That's the hotel, is it --
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- where the train

station is in Montreal?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Who has a room there?
MR. SCHREIBER: I.

MR. WOLSON: You had a room.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Was it the 17th of

December that you met with him?

MR. SCHREIBER: It should be in the

diary. When you say it, I think it's right.

trick you --

MR. WOLSON: Yes. I am not trying to

MR. SCHREIBER: No, no --

MR. WOLSON: -- it's the 17th of
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December in your diary.

I never would say

You meet in a hotel room

MR. SCHREIBER: --
that, Mr. Wolson.
MR. WOLSON:
again --
MR. SCHREIBER: No.
MR. WOLSON:

You didn't meet him in

the hotel room at the Queen Elizabeth?

MR.

little -- what could you say -- a lobby,

little coffee corner --

MR. WOLSON:

MR. SCHREIBER:
lounge --

MR. WOLSON:

MR. SCHREIBER: --
right word --

MR. WOLSON:

MR. SCHREIBER: --

from the Gold Key section.

SCHREIBER: No.

There 1s a nice

or like a

A little coffee shop?

It's more a little

A little lounge, yes.
"lounge" is the
Okay.
for the people

You have it here with the Chateau

I have never stayed

Laurier, you have the same thing.
MR. WOLSON:
there, but I take your word for it.

So there is a lounge for frequent
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travellers.

MR. SCHREIBER: For the guests from
the Gold Key section.

MR. WOLSON: Yes, okay.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, you pay for it,
and you go there, and you can have coffee or snacks, or
these little canapes with salmon.

It's very nice.

MR. WOLSON: I am sure it is.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you go up with him to
the Gold Floor?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I was at the Gold
Floor. That was where my room --

MR. WOLSON: Yes, and he met you
there.

MR. SCHREIBER: And he came to the
little lounge.

MR. WOLSON: And you met with him.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: How long was that
meeting for?

MR. SCHREIBER: Perhaps 45 minutes,
or an hour or so.

MR. WOLSON: What time was 1t?
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MR. SCHREIBER: It must have been
late in the morning. I would say 11, or something like
that, to my recollection.

Because I had, later on, another
meeting, and then, in the evening, I flew back to
Germany.

And T had also to say thank you to
him, because, in the meantime, when I came back that
week to Canada, I found in my office this nice parcel
with this nice big photo of his -- in a beautiful
frame, as he had promised at Harrington Lake, and I had
to say thank you.

I enjoyed that.

MR. WOLSON: You enjoyed what?

MR. SCHREIBER: I enjoyed the picture
a lot.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

So you met with him for about 45
minutes, and you thanked him for the photograph.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: What did you talk about?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, we spoke about
the project in Quebec, and that I would go to -- that I
had either met the day before or the same day Mr.

Ouellet.
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I have to see the diary, I don't
recall all of the details.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Let me help
you out. If you would go to Book 3 -- I will try and
keep you on the same book for a while.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay, that's fine.

MR. WOLSON: Book 3, Tab 28.

If you go to your diary for December

the 17th --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- it indicates here,
"Queen Elizabeth" -- this is under the number 15.

MR. SCHREIBER: Hang on, I have to
get this.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Tell me when you
are there.

MR. SCHREIBER: December 17th?

MR. WOLSON: Please. 1993.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You see that it's got a
number of names on it earlier in the day. Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And then, at 1500, or
15 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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Elizabeth..."

be a room number,

MR.

MR.

MR.

548

WOLSON : -- you have "Queen

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON : "...2710." That would

would it?

MR.

MR.

with Mr. Mulroney?

that?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Was that when you met

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: No? When did you do

SCHREIBER: The next day.
WOLSON: You met on the 18th?

SCHREIBER: Yes.

Because, you see here, I had a

meeting with André Ouellet, the Minister of External

Affairs.

page to the 18th.

Brian, home."

home?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

WOLSON: Okay. Then turn the

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: It says, "At 11 o'clock,

SCHREIBER: Yeah.

WOLSON: Did you meet him at his
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MR. SCHREIBER: No, this was on a
slip from Mr. Doucet to my office, the address in
Westmount, and we were supposed to meet there, but
then, since I was short on time and he was short on

time, we agreed that he would come to the hotel.

MR. WOLSON: So you met, then, at the

hotel.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: In the morning.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, 11 o'clock, as
it looks from my diary.

MR. WOLSON: You talked about the
Bear Head Project. What did you talk about the
project?

MR. SCHREIBER: I told him about my
meeting with André Ouellet, the Minister of External
Affairs, and you see --

To give you even a better
understanding, I knew Mr. Ouellet for quite a while,
because he was also a member of the Atlantic Bridge
Organization, as I was.

MR. WOLSON: The Atlantic Bridge --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Bridge as in --

MR. SCHREIBER: It's a bridge, yeah.
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MR. WOLSON: -- the Bridge game?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, no, it's
bridge -- Atlantik Brlcke. You go over a bridge.

MR. WOLSON: Like a bridge you travel
on. I see, okay.

MR. SCHREIBER: It's a bridge between
Europe, Canada and the United States, with very
distinguished members.

MR. WOLSON: Yes?

Go ahead.

MR. SCHREIBER: Allan MacEachen was
the chairman at the time. Later on it was -- it was --

What's his name?

Marc Lalonde.

MR. WOLSON: You knew a lot of
important people in Canada.

MR. SCHREIBER: Oh, yes. For
example, Claude Taylor from Air Canada.

MR. WOLSON: Sure.

MR. SCHREIBER: But we never spoke
about Airbus.

MR. WOLSON: No, but I want to keep
you focused on the meeting you had with Mr. Mulroney.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You are having a good
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time, I see, but that's fine --

MR. SCHREIBER: Absolutely, it was in
front of Christmas, I got the nice picture --

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: -- I had a hell of a
meeting with the minister -- the new minister --

MR. WOLSON: But tell me about the
meeting with Mr. Mulroney, that's what I want to know
about.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, I'm telling
you, I was excited, and I was happy with him, and I
shared my excitement, how things are moving now with
the Liberals, and with the help of Mr. Lalonde.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: And he was excited,
too. He said, "Hopefully, it works."

MR. WOLSON: I see.

I am not trying to trick you here,
but I am looking at your statement that you gave to the
Commission, to Mr. Roitenberg, when he interviewed you,
at page 7, and this is what you said:

"Mr. Schreiber stated that the
entry in his agenda on December
18th, 1993, refers to the

original date for the meeting
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with Mr. Mulroney at Mr.
Mulroney's home." (As read)

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"The meeting actually took place
at the Queen Elizabeth Hotel on
the 17th of December, 1993."

MR. SCHREIBER: I might have mixed it
up with my diary, because you can really see that it
was on the 18th.

There was no time between when I
arrived and the meeting with Mr. Ouellet.

MR. WOLSON: I want to establish the
date, and, obviously, you were at the meeting and I
wasn't, so let's look at Tab 29 of the same book.

MR. SCHREIBER: You know, Mr. Wolson,
things like this quite often change from minute to
minute, and then you don't run to your diary.

It could well be that we said that we
would meet on the 17th; no, it doesn't work at the
17th, the minister says he has no time, he has to come
the next day.

It is not a document where you say
everything, what is written there, happened the same

day --
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MR. WOLSON: No, I am relying on what

you told Roitenberg --

up.

appreciate that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- I am not making this

MR. SCHREIBRER: No, no. No, no, I

MR. WOLSON: So let's look at Tab 29.

That is Mr. Doucet's diary. Look at December 17th for

Mr.

call

Doucet.

MR. SCHREIBER: December 17th?
MR. WOLSON: December 17.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: It says, "At 11 o'clock,

I'm sorry, let's go to four o'clock.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: At four o'clock there is

an arrow and it says "Brian".

says,

Do you see that?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Then, just below that it

"K. Schreiber - Queen Elizabeth".

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Were you at the hotel,
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then, on the 17th?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it is my
recollection that that has changed, as I said to you
right now, because I had this meeting with Mr. Ouellet.

MR. WOLSON: It changed from the time
you gave your statement to Mr. Roitenberg on March 24,
20097

Because on March 24, 2009, you talked
about the meeting on the 17th.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, maybe this was
scheduled and still in my mind, but, as I see it here,
it didn't...

MR. WOLSON: All right, let's carry
on.

So you are at the gold room --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and you meet for
about 45 minutes, and --

MR. SCHREIBER: Hang on for one
second, please.

--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: Four o'clock, and
Ouellet at five.

Yeah, I think it's possible.

MR. WOLSON: What point were you

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5605

5606

5607

5608

5609

5610

5611

5612

5613

5614

5615

5616

5617

555

making, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, I checked it
here. With the arrival at the Queen Elizabeth and the
meeting with Minister Ouellet, it would have been
impossible to have met Mr. Mulroney at that time.

Maybe it was scheduled for that and
we moved it to the next day.

MR. WOLSON: All right. So let's
take it from you that it was the 18th.

Now, you were telling the
Commissioner that you met for three-quarters of an
hour --

MR. SCHREIBER: My recollection.

MR. WOLSON: -- you met in the gold

room, you talked about Bear Head, there were things

happening.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were excited about
Quebec.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You told him about the
meeting that you had with --

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Ouellet.

MR. WOLSON: -- with Mr. Ouellet.
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Is that a relative of
the Ouellet with GCI?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No, a different Ouellet.

MR. SCHREIBER: A different Ouellet.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Do you say
to him, "Brian, what are you doing for me on this Bear
Head Project"?

Do you say that to him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, we agreed, or we
were of the same understanding that we have to see what
the next developments are, and as soon as we would have
seen -- I mean, especially with the Province of
Quebec -- that we could use his help, I would have
asked him.

MR. WOLSON: Who arranged the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: Who arranged the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Which one?

MR. WOLSON: The Queen Elizabeth
Hotel meeting.

MR. SCHREIBER: Fred Doucet.
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MR. WOLSON: Fred arranged it.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Did he arrange all of
the meetings?

Did he arrange Harrington Lake?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did he arrange Mirabel?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did he arrange the Queen
Elizabeth?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And The Pierre?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you never asked Mr.

Mulroney what he had done for you in the last number of

months.

You didn't say that.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. In October was
the election, and he came home and -- I mean, Mr.

Wolson, there was no need for me to ask for anything
what he was doing, he was getting organized with his
life.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Did you ask
him for a statement of account?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.
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MR. WOLSON: A receipt?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Where you would both go
from there, in terms of where Bear Head was going?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, it would depend
if he would be able to do any work for us in Montreal,
on the provincial side, for example.

On the federal side he could do
nothing. This was with the ministers from the
Liberals.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: But on the provincial
side, I take it that he could have done a lot. Then he
would have sent me a bill, probably.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Did you ask
him to do something for you on the provincial side?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it didn't happen.

MR. WOLSON: You didn't ask him.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, because there was
nothing he could do at that moment, because the
election was in October, I guess, and this was in front
of Christmas.

Now you are asking me if I asked him
to go to the Liberals, to Chrétien, and bring me a

Christmas gift, or what?
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MR. WOLSON: A Christmas gift?

MR. SCHREIBER: A Christmas gift to
Mr. Chrétien. What could he have done for Christmas?

MR. WOLSON: What could he have done.

It was a Liberal government, you know
that he could do nothing with Mr. Chrétien.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, but this is
why -- I am kidding.

MR. WOLSON: Oh, you are kidding now,
I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: This is why I say,
what could he do in front of Christmas with the
project? Nothing.

Perhaps bringing Christmas gifts to
people and maintain a relationship was all he could do.

MR. WOLSON: I would like you not to
joke. I would like you to answer my questions. Will
you do that, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Thank you.

Did you transact any business with
him?

MR. SCHREIBER: Please?

MR. WOLSON: Give him any money.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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WOLSON: When did you do that?
SCHREIBER: At the lounge.

WOLSON: When, at the beginning

the end of the meeting, the middle of

SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

Maybe when he came I handed it over

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

WOLSON: How much money did you

SCHREIBER: A hundred thousand

WOLSON: What kind of bills?

SCHREIBER: A hundred $1,000
WOLSON: Thousand-dollar bills.
SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: One hundred thousand in
SCHREIBER: One hundred $1,000

WOLSON: In an envelope, or in

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Between the first

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5691

5692

5693

5694

5695

5696

5697

5698

5699

5700

5701

5702

5703

5704

561

meeting at the Mirabel Hotel and the meeting at the
Queen Elizabeth Hotel a few months had passed. Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did Mr. Mulroney call
you or say to you, "Karlheinz, I would like a cheque or
a bank draft, not cash"?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: At the Queen Elizabeth
Hotel did he say to you, "Karlheinz, I don't want this
cash, I want a cheque or a bank draft"?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: How thick would the
package be that you gave to him of $1,000 bills?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, if you would
take a hundred $20 bills, you would see what the size
is.

MR. WOLSON: Yes, but you were there,
so tell me how thick it was.

An inch thick?

MR. SCHREIBER: Huh?

MR. WOLSON: An inch?

MR. SCHREIBER: Oh, you must speak
with me in centimetres, I have problems with "inch".

MR. WOLSON: Centimetres.

So, then, tell me in centimetres.
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SCHREIBER: It was a normal

I cannot tell you how

WOLSON : I see.

SCHREIBER: "Thank you."

WOLSON: Did you tell him what

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: What did you say?

MR. SCHREIBER: A hundred thousand
dollars.

It was open. The envelope was not
sealed. He opened it up.

MR. WOLSON: He didn't count it?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you tell him how
much it was?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: The Conservatives had
lost the election.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: You knew that,
federally, Mr. Mulroney was unable to help you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Not on the outside.

MR. WOLSON: You thought that he
could help you on the inside with the two members that
the Conservatives had in government?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, it is
known that, for example, Mr. Mulroney has very powerful
friends with the Liberals.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: For example, Paul
Martin and others.

I don't know how many friends he has
with the Liberals.

MR. WOLSON: So you thought that he
could do something federally and provincially, did you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Behind the curtain,
not on the outside.

MR. WOLSON: Behind the curtain.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Did you ask

him?

Did you say to him, "You know, Brian,
given the state of federal politics right now" -- maybe
you put it in different words -- "can you help me
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federally still, do you think?"

Did you ask him that?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, it went so
wonderful with Ouellet that there was nothing to do at
the moment.

MR. WOLSON: Well, if it went
so wonderful, why did you need Mr. Mulroney to continue
with Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: What would I know
what was going to happen the next day?

MR. WOLSON: Would you have said to
him, "Mr. Mulroney," or, "Brian -- "

I am sure you called him Brian, did

you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Would you have said,
"Brian, you know, let's wait and see what happens. I'm

not sure that I need you on this project any more"?
Did you say that to him?
MR. SCHREIBER: No.
MR. WOLSON: No.
MR. SCHREIBER: I was convinced that
I would need him sooner or later.
And he was, too, because he was

interested, Mr. Wolson.
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MR. WOLSON: This would be a
convenient time to break for the morning.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: All right.
It's coming up on 10:45. We will break until 11
o'clock this morning.

--- Upon recessing at 10:43 a.m. / Suspension & 10 h 43
--- Upon resuming at 11:05 a.m. / Reprise a 11 h 05

THE REGISTRAR: All rise. Veuillez
vous lever.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Be seated,
please.

Mr. Wolson...?

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Schreiber, other
than the meeting at the Mirabel, then the meeting at
the Queen Elizabeth, and then the meeting at the Pierre
Hotel, I'm assuming that you didn't meet with
Mr. Mulroney in between those times.

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct, sir.

MR. WOLSON: Did you from time to
time, other than these three meetings, have coffee with
Mr. Mulroney? I'm talking now after he left office.

Did you come to Montréal and call him
up for a cup of coffee?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No. Did you have coffee

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5758

5759

5760

5761

5762

5763

5764

5765

5766

5767

5768

5769

5770

5771

5772

566

with him at the Mirabel Hotel?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall
whether he had tea or coffee, but we had something to
drink and to eat.

MR. WOLSON: You either had tea or

coffee?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: What about at the --
MR. SCHREIBER: Or he could have had
water too. I don't know.
MR. WOLSON: Yes. What about at
the -- is it the Gold Room it's called?

MR. SCHREIBER: The Gold Key Section.

MR. WOLSON: The Gold Key Section.

MR. SCHREIBER: M'hmm.

MR. WOLSON: And what about there,
did you have tea or coffee there?

MR. SCHREIBER: This is what I meant.
This is where I met with him.

MR. WOLSON: I understand you met
with him at the Queen Elizabeth --

MR. SCHREIBER: At this lounge.

MR. WOLSON: But I'm asking you, did
you have -- did the two of you have coffee then?

MR. SCHREIBER: At the Queen
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Elizabeth?

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, coffee or tea or
water. I don't know.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. So the locations
that you did that were at Mirabel and at the Queen
Elizabeth in Canada at least, where you met and had
coffee or tea or water and exchanged, you to him,
$100,000°7?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. You know that
Mr. Mulroney's position is that it wasn't $100,000 that
you gave him but $75,000 on each occasion.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: What is your response to

that?

MR. SCHREIBER: TIt's wrong.

MR. WOLSON: Pardon me?

MR. SCHREIBER: TIt's wrong.

MR. WOLSON: TIt's wrong?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: How do you know it was
$100,0007?

MR. SCHREIBER: Because I always

brought $100,000.
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MR. WOLSON: How do you know that?
Did you count it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Sure I counted when I
brought it.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Where did you get
the hundred thousand dollars that you brought for him
at the Queen Elizabeth Hotel?

MR. SCHREIBER: They came all from
the Swiss bank.

MR. WOLSON: Well, when did you get
that thousand dollars(sic) to give to Mr. Mulroney at
the Queen Elizabeth Hotel on December 18th, you said?

MR. SCHREIBER: I have no
recollection. I would have to look at my diaries
whether I had a meeting with the bank in Zurich or not.

MR. WOLSON: But did the money come
from Europe?

MR. SCHREIBER: Please...?

MR. WOLSON: Did the money come from
a bank in Europe?

MR. SCHREIBER: Always.

MR. WOLSON: Always. You got $1,000
Canadian bills in Europe?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: I think you told
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Mr. Mansbridge that in Europe it's easy to spend $1,000
note; in Canada your experience is it is quite
difficult.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. Once in a while
nearly impossible.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. All right.

You just told the Commissioner that
between the Queen Elizabeth meeting in December on the
18th, 1993, you never met with him again until you met
with him at the Pierre Hotel?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And that was December 8,
19947

MR. SCHREIBER: This is my
recollection, yes.

MR. WOLSON: By the way, we know that
you paid Fred Doucet $90,000 because we went over that
yesterday, I think a cheque on 15 November 1988.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you pay him other
monies?

MR. SCHREIBER: Not to my
recollection. I think I told you or it could be that
he sent another bill to a company in Switzerland,

Merkur, for $30,000 --
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MR. WOLSON: Merkur?

MR. SCHREIBER: -- but I'm not sure.

MR. WOLSON: Merkur?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. And for how much

did you say?

MR. SCHREIBER: Please, $30,000.

MR. WOLSON: $30,000.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay.

MR. SCHREIBER: I saw somewhere a
note about this, but I'm not sure.

MR. WOLSON: What was he doing for
you other than getting appointments for you, or was
that what you had him do after the UIP was signed?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, he worked --
the money he got in '88, as you know, and the other
money as well, '88 to '89.

MR. WOLSON: Yes...?

MR. SCHREIBER: He did not get any
money in the meantime.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: Unless Bear Head paid

him. I don't know that at the moment.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. But you said the
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money in 1988, the $90,000, was for getting Mr. Perrin
Beatty to sign the UIP?

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. So any other
money that he got would have been either that $30,000
you think you paid him or Bear Head would have paid
him?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Was part of his
retainer to get you appointments when you wanted them?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I have a
problem with your word "retainer". I never had a
formal retainer with him.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Was part of your
arrangement with --

MR. SCHREIBER: You may call it, yes.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. I think he calls
it a retainer, so that's why --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You don't call it a
retainer. You call it a business arrangement?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah. It was never

identified or defined in a special way.
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WOLSON: There was no mandate --

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: -- with you and Fred

SCHREIBER: No.
WOLSON: Okay.

SCHREIBER: We had -

as far as I

recall, when he became a lobbyist he put Bitucan and

Bear Head as his clients,

MR.

you, then, you don't meet Mr.

WOLSON: All right.

18th until December 8, 19947?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

but otherwise I don't know.

Let me ask

Mulroney after December

WOLSON: Almost one year passes?

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Had the enthusiasm for

Bear Head in Québec started to die down a little?

MR.

SCHREIBER: I would have to look

at the documents, but I think there was quite some

activity in '94 because, as I told you, still in '95

the Canadian Ambassador sent a letter to me -- and I'm

sure you have it in your files -- that he was in Canada

and that he learned things are moving well and a

decision will be made soon.

MR.

WOLSON: In 1994 Mr.
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working for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. Bear Head.

MR. WOLSON: Bear Head.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: He was working for Bear
Head, of course.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Well, did you call
Mr. Mulroney and ask him in that year -- it's almost
the whole year, December 18, '93, December 8, '94.
It's just 10 days shy of a whole year.

Did you call Mr. Mulroney and say to
him: Brian, where are we at? What are you doing for
me? Give me an update, tell me what's happening.

Did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, we could do
nothing as long as we would not have an arrangement
with the federal government, as I told you earlier.

MR. WOLSON: I thought that you said
he could do something you thought provincially.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but that would
take place only if we have an arrangement with the
federal government, otherwise why would he do anything
in Québec?

MR. WOLSON: So what you are saying,
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if he couldn't do it federally --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: -- it couldn't happen;
right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, because we
needed DND to make the deal.

MR. WOLSON: Sure. And he was --
your view was that even though the Conservatives only
had two seats, you felt that he could still make it
happen behind the curtains?

MR. SCHREIBER: With his Liberal
friends, yes. Or be helpful I mean, not make it
happen.

MR. WOLSON: Did he tell you? Did
you call him after Christmas of 1993 -- I know you
didn't want to disturb him at Christmas time. Did you
call him in January or February or March or April or
May? Did you call him and say: Brian, are you making
any progress for me?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I have no
recollection on that because by that time Mr. Massmann
and Mr. Lalonde were working on the federal level, and
as long as there was no decision there was nothing to
talk. But --

MR. WOLSON: But Mr. -- yes, go
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ahead.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Mulroney called
me and I spoke to him and I think that was later in '94
when Stevie Cameron came up with her book "On the Take"
also. I have a vague recollection.

MR. WOLSON: But I'm asking you
whether you called Mr. Mulroney and asked him to give
you an update on where he's at.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. No.

MR. WOLSON: You stood to gain, 1if
everything went your way, $1.8 billion --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and you don't call
the man who is working for you, who you are paying, and
say to him: Brian, come on, what's happening, give me
something. Tell me what you're doing.

You don't do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: He could do nothing,

I told you, on the federal level and there was Marc
Lalonde with Mr. Ouellet, and there was no need for him
to do anything.

MR. WOLSON: TIf he couldn't do
anything why did you pay him $100,000 in 1993, December
18th, if he couldn't do anything for you on Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I hoped he
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could do something.

MR. WOLSON: But you just said he
couldn't do anything.

MR. SCHREIBER: Without a federal
thing.

MR. WOLSON: I understand that.

MR. SCHREIBER: He was more or less
waiting for his moment to do something. When you
have -- when you have a show, you have actors,
different actors, and they show up at different times
in different roles, Mr. Wolson.

MR. WOLSON: TIf he couldn't do
anything for you federally because he only had two
Conservative members with seats --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- you gave him $100,000

at the Queen Elizabeth Hotel knowing that.
MR. SCHREIBER: Sure.
MR. WOLSON: I think I was up to May.
June, July, August, September,
October, November 1994, did you call him and say to
him: Brian, where are we at?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: $1.8 billion potentially

and you don't do that.
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MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you call him and
say: Brian, could I get a statement of account?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Did you say
to Fred Doucet: Fred, can you find out what Brian is
doing for me? Did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say to Elmer
MacKay: Can you find out what Brian is doing for me?
Did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. I don't recall.

I got my reports anyhow from
Mr. Alford what's going on there. And the Thyssen
people informed me, which have been in the day by day
business. There was no need to ask anybody else. They
run the action.

MR. WOLSON: But you said that
Mr. Alford didn't know that Mr. Mulroney was working
for you and Bear Head.

MR. SCHREIBER: I speak about what
they did with the Québec government, with the Liberals.
This has nothing to do with Mr. Mulroney.

MR. WOLSON: But you would be

interested, I would think, to know what the man,
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Mr. Mulroney, is doing for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: But you weren't?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: It was my
understanding he had to wait until we get somehow a
deal with the federal government.

MR. WOLSON: I see. If you had a
deal with the federal government, why would you need
Mr. Mulroney? If you had a deal, you would have a
deal, wouldn't you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. But perhaps on
the provincial side.

Mr. Wolson, I had Marc Lalonde and
Marc Lalonde and Mr. Mulroney are not friends.

MR. WOLSON: But you understand
that -- you just told the Commissioner you couldn't get
a provincial deal; you needed to get it federally. You
needed to get DND onside.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but this is
nothing Mr. Mulroney could do.

MR. WOLSON: My oh my, Mr. Schreiber,
you answer in circles, because it seems to me that if

you hired the man to lobby for you, you would want to
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ask him what he's doing for you. But you don't.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. It depends how
you look at the situation and you must allow me that I
have my own thoughts about my business, Mr. Wolson.

MR. WOLSON: I'm sure you do.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr. Wolson, I
would like to ask a question.

It seems to me -- I want to make sure
I've got your evidence correctly -- that it didn't
matter to you that Mr. Mulroney was doing nothing. You
paid him even though he was doing nothing.

MR. SCHREIBER: At the moment.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: When did you
change your mind?

MR. SCHREIBER: At the end.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Well, when
did the end come?

MR. SCHREIBER: After '94 I didn't
pay him any more.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: You paid him
$300,000.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, up to the end of
'94 .

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: And you had

no complaints about the fact that he was doing nothing.
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You were paying him hopefully, in the hope rather, that
something might come together?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Did you tell
him that that was the condition?

MR. SCHREIBER: It was normal. It
was understanding. What else could he do?

I told you yesterday, Commissioner,
that I had three reasons to help him.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: But just a
second.

Didn't you sue him for the $300,0007?

MR. SCHREIBER: That was later.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Okay.

MR. SCHREIBER: That was in 2004,
when he refused to do anything else when I asked him to
participate in the pasta business and he refused to do
sSo.

MR. WOLSON: All right, let's carry
on.

December 8th, 1994 you meet with him
at the Pierre Hotel in New York City.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why in New York?

MR. SCHREIBER: Because I was in New
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York.

MR. WOLSON: Did you bring money this
time?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: How much?

MR. SCHREIBER: $100,000.

MR. WOLSON: Where did you get it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Switzerland.

MR. WOLSON: Were you coming from
Switzerland to New York or Switzerland-Canada-New York?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, from Germany.
From Germany.

MR. WOLSON: I'm sorry. You came
from Germany to New York City or did you come from
Germany to Canada to New York?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, either from
Switzerland or from Germany I came direct to New York.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: I'm pretty convinced
I came from Germany.

MR. WOLSON: You know, I have come
from Europe to Canada even back in those days, and the
Americans are very tough on bringing large amounts of
money into the country. They ask you on a form and

they say are you carrying more than $10,000 currency.
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Everyone on the airplane gets one of those and you sign
it to sign for its honesty.

Did you get a form like that and did
you tell the Americans you were bringing $100,000
$1,000 Canadian bills into the United States of
America?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, I have no
recollection, as I told you yesterday, and I'm not even
sure whether it was the same thing in that days.

MR. WOLSON: I see. All right.

So you are packing $100,000 $1,000
bills and you make your way to New York, New York, at
the Pierre Hotel?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Doucet arranged that
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you have a room
there?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you meet
Mr. Mulroney in that room?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And, by the way, let me

just back up for one second.
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When you met him at the Queen

Elizabeth Hotel in the Gold Key Room, you gave him

$100,000 publicly?

I mean,

envelope,

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Yes, in an envelope.

when you sit in the room and hand over an

who knows what is in the envelope.

WOLSON: All right. But in the

Pierre Hotel you meet privately in a room?

visitor with you?

Freddie Doucet

Fred or Freddie?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

WOLSON: And this time you have a

SCHREIBER:

Yes, unexpected.

WOLSON: Unexpected visitor,

Fred Doucet.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

WOLSON: What did you call him,

SCHREIBER:

Fred.

WOLSON : Fred. And so there's

the three of you in this room?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

WOLSON: How long does that

meeting last for between you and Mr. Doucet and

Mr.

Mulroney?

MR.

SCHREIBER:

StenoTran

I think it started



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5982

5983

5984

5985

5986

5987

5988

5989

5990

5991

5992

5993

5994

584

around 11:00 or so, then we had this lunch. Maybe an
hour, an hour 15 minutes or something like that.

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Mulroney said that
at that meeting he gave you a full update on what he
had done for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did that happen?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: What did you talk about
for an hour or an hour and a half?

MR. SCHREIBER: Oh, well, we spoke
about the situation in Québec and there was the new
white paper coming up with the Forces.

MR. WOLSON: Did you talk about the
white paper?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you have a copy of
the white paper there?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. Mr. Mulroney
brought it.

MR. WOLSON: He brought a copy of the
white paper?

MR. SCHREIBER: Or a letter from
Mr. Massmann based on that.

MR. WOLSON: Well, the white paper
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talks about NATO.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did he talk to you about
NATO and the fact that the future for Bear Head would
be export in international markets?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, only if Canada
would be involved. Mr. Massmann from Thyssen would
have not needed anybody in Canada if they wanted to
export their product out of Germany.

MR. WOLSON: Maybe Canada had better
access to certain countries than Germany did because
of --

MR. SCHREIBER: Especially the
Commonwealth, vyes.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: And, as I told you
before, the U.S./Canadian Defence Production Sharing
Agreement, which was a very, very valuable document.

MR. WOLSON: So that was discussed at
the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: That was raised at the
meeting, the white paper?

MR. SCHREIBER: What's the situation

with the white paper and what is going to happen in
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Montréal.

MR. WOLSON: And it was raised by
Mr. Mulroney? He had the white paper?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, he came with a
copy from a letter I think for Mr. Massmann dealing
with the white paper also.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Okay.

Mr. Massmann from Thyssen?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: (Off
microphone) .

MR. SCHREIBER: Please...?

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr. Massmann
had written to Mr. Mulroney?

MR. SCHREIBER: It was either to Bear
Head or to Mr. Doucet.

MR. WOLSON: We will hear evidence
about that, Mr. Commissioner, from other witnesses.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So did he tell you,

Mr. Mulroney, what he had done for you?

MR. SCHREIBER: He could do nothing.

He was watching what was going on.

MR. WOLSON: Did he give you an
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account of going overseas and consulting with some

leaders in China?

MR.

MR.

about that?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: He never said anything

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: Did he tell you that he

went over and talked to Mr. Yeltsin from Russia?

MR.

MR.

lines?

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: Nothing along those

SCHREIBER: No.
WOLSON: Are you sure of that?

SCHREIBER: I'm absolutely sure.

And I would wonder very much why he wouldn't have told

me at the Queen Elizabeth because he was in this

country or at least in China or Russia before that.

MR.

MR.
year to tell me?

MR.
Pierre Hotel.

MR.

MR.

please?

WOLSON: I want to ask you --

SCHREIBER: Why would he wait a

WOLSON: I'm asking you about the

SCHREIBER: Yeah.

WOLSON: Would you focus on that,
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SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: All right.

Did he say anything about going over

to France and talking to President Mitterrand?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: Or going to the United

States and doing some work for you there?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: You know that Mr. Fred

Doucet, who was there at the meeting, said those things

happened.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: I know it.

WOLSON: You know that

Mr. Mulroney has said those things happened.

MR.
the Ethics Committee.

MR.

didn't happen?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: I know he said it at

WOLSON: You are telling me they

SCHREIBER: Didn't happen.
WOLSON: Are you sure of that?
SCHREIBER: I'm absolutely sure.

WOLSON: Was China or Russia an

area that could be exploited in terms of Thyssen and

sale of vehicles?

MR.

SCHREIBER: I told you before,
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it's nonsense in itself. It would never get the COCOM
Order. Communist countries would never be allowed to
buy NATO equipment. It's pure nonsense.

MR. WOLSON: I see. What did you
talk about for an hour and a half? That's a long time.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but he was quite
often running to the washroom because he had diarrhoea.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. WOLSON: You know, we have been
at this today, if you exclude the breaks, for about an
hour and a half. That's a long time. I have asked you
a lot of guestions today.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, that's correct.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So an hour and a half,
did he -- what did you talk about when you talked?

MR. SCHREIBER: He was -- maybe it
was an hour and 15 minutes. As I told you before,
there is the white paper, the situation in Montréal,
there is this -- I think there was something with this
"On the Take" with Stevie Cameron and how are you
doing, what's going on.

We knew that Pelossi was running

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6061

6062

6063

6064

6065

6066

6067

6068

6069

6070

6071

6072

6073

590

around with a journalist.

I mean, there are a lot of things we
might have talked about.

MR. WOLSON: All right. It has been
now whole year --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- a whole year since
you had met and seen Mr. Mulroney.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say to him: All
right, Brian, tell me what you have done for me? Did
you say that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say: Brian,
give me an update, I would like to know where we are
at?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him for a
statement of account?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. If he would have
something, then he would have told me.

MR. WOLSON: So you knew that he
couldn't do anything for you. You told the
Commissioner that.

MR. SCHREIBER: On the federal level.
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MR. WOLSON: At Bear Head.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And without the federal
level being secured, there was no provincial that you
could do. You needed DND. You have told us that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Exactly.

MR. WOLSON: So you don't ask him for
a progress report. He doesn't give you one.

You don't ask him what he has done
for you. He doesn't tell you.

You talk about "On The Take", a book.
You talk about the white paper.

I'm sure you exchanged pleasantries.
He wasn't feeling well.

You know at that time that he can't
do anything for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you give him another
$100,000.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Cash?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: $1,000 bills?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: In the United States of
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America, Canadian $1,000 bills?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: 100 of them?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: That ends the meeting.
What did he say when you gave him the money?

MR. SCHREIBER: He said nothing.
Fred Doucet was in the room. But he looked out of the
window and when I handed over the envelope Mr. Mulroney
put it in a newspaper, folded it and went to the
washroom.

MR. WOLSON: Did you tell him what
was in the envelope?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say it was
$100,000°7?

MR. SCHREIBER: He knew.

MR. WOLSON: Did he ask you what was
in the envelope?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, when I said here,
the next rate I brought for you.

MR. WOLSON: The next what?

MR. SCHREIBER: The next instalment I

brought for you.
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MR. WOLSON: So you give him $100,000
at the Queen Elizabeth, $100,000 at the Pierre and you
know that if Bear Head is going to happen, it's got to
happen federally. You know that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. But things can
change quite often.

MR. WOLSON: There could be another
election, I guess.

MR. SCHREIBER: For example.

MR. WOLSON: Sure. There had just
been one. Did the Liberals win a majority?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You knew they were there
for quite a while when they won a majority.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You can't have a
non-confidence vote and destroy the government when the
government has a majority.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No. You knew the
Liberals were there for a number of years.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, 1if we
went --

MR. WOLSON: Did you know that, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: I could think it.
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But look, assume Mr. Chrétien would have a car accident
and die. The next Prime Minister is Paul Martin, a
very close friend of Mr. Mulroney.

How would you know what is going to
happen?

MR. WOLSON: I see. You are giving
him money --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Hoping that something
happens to Mr. Chrétien.

MR. SCHREIBER: No; hoping that one
day Mulroney can do something for me.

MR. WOLSON: M'hmm.
--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: And by the way,
Mr. Wolson, if he would have been engaged in the pasta
business a couple of years later, together with me,
Bill Gates, Bill Clinton and the Governor of
California, Schwarzenegger, he could have been a very,
very, very good asset for me in that business.

MR. WOLSON: Were you in business
with Bill Clinton?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, but they --

MR. WOLSON: Were you in business

with Arnold Schwarzenegger?
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MR. SCHREIBER: No, but --

MR. WOLSON: Were you in business
with Mr. Gates?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Thank you.

MR. SCHREIBER: They all started to
fight obesity which was one of our programs.

MR. WOLSON: But you weren't in
business with any of them?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, but Mr. Mulroney.

MR. WOLSON: No. But you were in
business with Mr. Mulroney --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- in 1993.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you had a pasta
business in 1998.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you're giving him
money in 1993 because you're thinking in 1998 you might
have a pasta business.

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No. It could have
been something else.

MR. WOLSON: All right, let's carry

on.
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The situation at the Pierre Hotel,
what -- was there an arrangement at the hotel with
Elmer MacKay? That is, what was happening?

Was Elmer at the hotel, Elmer MacKay?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And why is that?

MR. SCHREIBER: But I may give you
this story the other way around.

I was there because there was a huge
event from the Atlantik-Bricke. I explained to you
earlier this day what it was.

MR. WOLSON: I understand it now,
thank vyou.

MR. SCHREIBER: And there were people
like Mr. Kissinger and all kinds. It's a huge event at
the Metropolitan Club with Tony Bennett and his band as
a singer, and Bear Head Industries had bought a whole
table to support --

MR. WOLSON: When was that?

MR. SCHREIBER: The evening before.

MR. WOLSON: The evening before.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So December 7 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: -- at the Metropolitan
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Club.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You are at this big gala
event with all of the stars and all of the important
people and Bear Head was there.

MR. SCHREIBER: It was wonderful.
And normally Allan MacEachen should have been there
because he was President of the Atlantik-Brlcke
organization for Canada, but unfortunately he couldn't
make it.

So now, Elmer MacKay a short time
before married his wife Sharon, a wonderful woman, and
we are very close friends. And since we had this table
there my wife and I decided we invite Elmer and his
wife to that event as our wedding gift, and this is
what we did.

And the next day we had lunch
together.

MR. WOLSON: Was this a lunch
attended by a lot of people --

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: -- to celebrate their
wedding reception?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. No. It was my

wife and Mrs. MacKay, Mr. MacKay and I.
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The evening before Mr. Alford
attended.

MR. WOLSON: All right. So you have
explained it very well. You are now going to have
lunch with Mr. and Mrs. MacKay, you and your wife.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And that's on December
8th.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And when was that going
to happen? You had a meeting at 11 o'clock in the
morning with Mr. Mulroney and with Mr. Doucet.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. When the
meeting went over --

MR. WOLSON: Yes...?

MR. SCHREIBER: -- we went down to
the hotel to meet my wife Barbell, Mr. MacKay and
Mrs. MacKay and I arranged this as a surprise.

MR. WOLSON: You arranged what as a
surprise?

MR. SCHREIBER: Surprise. Mr. MacKay
did not know that Mr. Mulroney was there.

MR. WOLSON: Who did you arrange this
through?

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?
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MR. WOLSON: Who did you arrange this
surprise through?

MR. SCHREIBER: I needed nobody. I
invited Elmer and Brian was coming.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. So you knew
Mr. Mulroney was coming to the room to visit with you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. I took him to
the lunch as a surprise from for the MacKays.

MR. WOLSON: Did you tell
Mr. Mulroney you would like him to come downstairs --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- because Elmer MacKay
and his wife were there?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: I see. So Elmer and --
I'm sorry, so Mr. Mulroney and Mr. Doucet come
downstairs?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And do the six of you
then have lunch together?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. Yes.
Mr. Mulroney had only tea because he had diarrhoea.

MR. WOLSON: We don't have to go
there, and it's not a question that I've asked you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: I have asked you, did
you have lunch together?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: All right. How long did
that last for?

MR. SCHREIBER: Again an hour, an
hour and a half.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: I want to review with
you a memorandum to a file that Mr. Doucet made. You
will find that at Book 3, Tab 33.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But just before I do
that, when you were with Mr. Mulroney in the hotel room
at the Pierre Hotel on your 11 o'clock meeting, did you
talk to him about other projects aside from Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: Ninety-four. Well,
it could be that I mentioned briefly the situation with
Archer Daniels, but we could do nothing there as long
as we would not be established in Canada.

MR. WOLSON: So you may have
mentioned something about Archer Daniels?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But you --
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MR. SCHREIBER: This is a pure guess
from my side.

MR. WOLSON: I see. Because you
couldn't do anything about Archer Daniels in Canada in
1994.

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct.

MR. WOLSON: And that is the only
thing you would have been interested with Mr. Mulroney
with Archer Daniels was doing something in Canada with
him potentially in '94 and '957?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you tell the
judge in Eurocopter that you hired him in '94 to do
Archer Daniels work for you, the section that I read to
you earlier from Eurocopter? Why did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, this was the
time when he brought me the first time their brochure,
and he would work for me on that.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you tell the
judge you hired him in 1994, Archer Daniels, when he
couldn't do anything for you, you just said?

Why did you do that? Why did you
tell that to the judge?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, it could very

well be that he could do something with us in the
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future on that. This is nothing that develops in one

hour, Mr. Wolson.

MR.

judge that you hired him for Bear Head, because that is

what you had done.
MR.
MR.
don't know why?
MR.
MR.

MR.

WOLSON: Why didn't you tell the

SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

WOLSON: You don't know. You

SCHREIBER: No.

WOLSON: No.

SCHREIBER: But I think I spoke

about Bear Head to the judge.

MR.
hired --
MR.

MR.

WOLSON: You were asked if you

SCHREIBER: About Thyssen.

WOLSON: You were asked if you

hired anybody from government '85 to '93.

say I hired Mulroney to do Bear Head.

Plain and simple.
MR.
--- Pause

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

You didn't

You didn't.

WOLSON: Now, do you have Book 3,

Tab 33 available to you?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: This is Mr.
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memo to a file that he made and we will ask him about

it. But because you are here, I want to ask you for

your account.

This is what Mr. MacKay had to say:
"On that date, (Dec. 8/94) I
travelled to New York to meet up
with MBM..."

Brian Mulroney:

"... for the purpose of
attending a lunch at the
invitation of K.S. ..."

Who is Karlheinz Schreiber:

"... on the occasion of Elmer
MacKay's recent wedding."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON:

"Elmer and his wife along with
Barbell and others were in
attendance. It was understood
that ahead of the lunch K.S.
wanted MBM to provide a report
to him on his ongoing assignment
of oversight internationally on

behalf of K.S.'s corporate
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interests."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.
"At approximately 11:00 a.m..."

That's true, is 1it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:
", .. MBM and I proceeded to
K.S.'s room for approximately 1
1/2 hrs. ..."

That's true, isn't it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:
"... the two of them discussed
various aspects about MBM's
assignment as well as a number
of matters where MBM saw
opportunities in the
international arena."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON:
"K.S. provided some materials to
MBM about some projects he was

pursuing."
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Is that true? You provided materials

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

MR. WOLSON:
"At the end of the discussions
K.S. handed over an envelope
indicating that a payment for
services and expenses were
included."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON:
"I was present throughout the
discussion period."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:
"At the end of the 1 1/2 hrs
(approx) we all went down to the
restaurant together to join the
other guests at the Elmer MacKay
luncheon."

Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON:
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"Lunch lasted for about 1 1/2
hrs and MBM and I left
together."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: Two people, Mr. Mulroney
and Mr. Doucet, say that that is more or less what
happened.

MR. SCHREIBER: That's fine, but I
was very surprised that Mr. Doucet came. Mr. Doucet
was invited from nobody, neither from me nor from the
MacKays. That's number one.

And if there would have been a
wedding luncheon for Mr. MacKay, I'm convinced that
Mrs. Mulroney would have joined her husband and nobody
else.

MR. WOLSON: Well, that's all well
and good about having lunch with the MacKays, which I'm
sure was a delightful time, but I'm more interested in
the time in the hotel room when Mr. Doucet, and I
expect Mr. Mulroney to say that you were given a full
account of Mr. Mulroney's activities on your behalf.

MR. SCHREIBER: And I told you, sir,
before, it is nonsense. There is no business with

China and Russia on NATO equipment. Forget it. 1It's a
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joke.
--- Pause
MR. WOLSON: And on top of not asking
for a statement of account, not asking for what
Mr. Mulroney was doing for you, knowing he couldn't do

anything for you, as I said before, you gave him more

money.
Is that true?
MR. SCHREIBER: Let me say something
to it. I cannot exclude that Mr. Mulroney perhaps said

that he had discussions with people in the province but
everybody is waiting.

But this would have been of no
importance to me because, as I told you, as long as the
federal government would not agree with DND, nothing
would happen.

MR. WOLSON: In the end result he had
done nothing for you and you gave him more money.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: That's how you see it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. And let me add
this, if at that time he would have asked me for more
money because he needed it badly, I would have arranged
it for him from Germany.

MR. WOLSON: I see. And then you
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would have sued him later.

MR. SCHREIBER: This is a different
ballgame. This is for business.

MR. WOLSON: It's a different
ballgame, all right.

MR. SCHREIBER: Business. That was
business.

MR. WOLSON: All right. You sued him
later, not because you cared about the $300,000, you
sued him later because you wanted to have an inquiry.

That's why you sued him. Isn't that
sSo°?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: He told the judge or the
Commissioner yesterday $100,000 doesn't mean anything
to you, and I'm sure neither does $300,000. But you
sued him for it, didn't you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I wanted
him to take the stand. I am asking since 1997 for a
day in court in Alberta and the difference is I always
ask also for an inquiry.

And since I learned from Mulroney for
years that he would support this idea and help and it
didn't happen, I sued him.

MR. WOLSON: So in answer to my
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guestion, you sued because you wanted an inquiry.
That's one of the reasons you sued the man.

MR. SCHREIBER: I wanted him to
testify, and on top of this I wanted the money back
because he hasn't done a thing for me.

MR. WOLSON: And you wanted an
inquiry and you knew that this was a way to get it.
You just said it.

It's true, isn't it, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: Why would the lawsuit
be necessary for an inquiry? I have the same thing in
Alberta where I wait for years so that I can subpoena
the people and ask them to take the stand. It's known.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you just say
because I wanted an inquiry, too. You just said it,
sir.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. I wanted an
inquiry anyhow, but this is not why I sued him.

MR. WOLSON: Did you abandon the
lawsuit?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Because you got the
inquiry.

MR. SCHREIBER: Please...?

MR. WOLSON: You abandoned the
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lawsuit because you got the inquiry.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I
abandoned the lawsuit not to undermine the work of this
inquiry, because in Québec the defendant is permitted
to cross-examine the plaintiff first in public.

MR. WOLSON: I see. And you didn't
want to be cross-examined in public?

MR. SCHREIBER: Before this inquiry
takes up its work I did not want to hurt this inquiry.
And yes, this may have cost me $300,000 to $500,000.

MR. WOLSON: Of course you testified
before the Ethics Committee before this inquiry.

MR. SCHREIBER: Please...?

MR. WOLSON: You testified before the
Ethics Committee before we had an inquiry.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You didn't want to hurt
the work of the inquiry. Is that why you didn't tell
the truth at Eurocopter when you were under oath?

Is it, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: Different ballgame.

MR. WOLSON: Different ballgame.
Different ballgame, same oath; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Please...?

MR. WOLSON: Oath to tell the truth.
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MR. SCHREIBER: Well, when I miss
something, a detail, so you are telling me I'm not
telling the truth?

MR. WOLSON: Well, I suppose we will
leave that for a higher authority than me.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Mr.
Schreiber, in the exchange that you have just had with
Mr. Wolson you talked about the lawsuit that you
commenced over the $300,000, saying you wanted to get
Mr. Mulroney on the stand.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: And then you
talked about a lawsuit in Alberta that has been there
for years.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Did you sue
Mr. Mulroney in Alberta?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, sir. I sued the
federal government in Alberta since 1997, based on --

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Well, what
would that have to do with Mr. Mulroney? He was out of
power as of '93.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. Mr. Mulroney

would be a potential witness in that case because it
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deals with the letter of request to Switzerland, sir.
--- Pause
6319 MR. WOLSON: If I may just have one
moment, please, Mr. Commissioner.
--- Pause
6320 MR. WOLSON: You told Mr. Roitenberg,
my colleague at the Commission, you told him at page 2
of your statement, which you have told the Commissioner
is true, you said:
"Mr. Schreiber provided details
about the meetings at Harrington
Lake, Mirabel, the Queen
Elizabeth Hotel and the Pierre
Hotel. The meeting at
Harrington Lake and their
subsequent meetings all related
to the establishment of a plant

for Thyssen in Montréal."

(As read)
6321 What you said in your affidavit, your
affidavit in Book 3, Tab 21 -- I will read it to you,

paragraph 24:
"I made this third payment..."
6322 We are talking about the Pierre Hotel

now obviously:
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"... even though, at the time
that I made this the payment, it
was clear that it was
practically impossible for Mr.
Mulroney to become involved in
the Bear Head Quebec Project
(after Mr. Mulroney announced
his retirement, the Honourable
Kim Campbell, then Leader of the
Conservative Party, became the
Prime Minister of Canada and
called an election in October
1993 but lost and the Right
Honourable Jean Chrétien became
Prime Minister on October 25,
1993) because Mr. Mulroney and I

agreed..."

That was all bracketed. So you say

you gave the money to Mr. Mulroney because you and

Mr.

Mulroney agreed:

"... that Mr. Mulroney would
continue to be available to
assist me in my other business

endeavors."

Is that a true statement?

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6325

6326

6327

6328

6329

6330

6331

6332

6333

614

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But that's not what you
told my colleague Mr. Roitenberg when you gave him an
interview. You said all three payments were related to
the Bear Head Project.

MR. SCHREIBER: But as I said
earlier, if he could not produce anything there and
something would come up later on, I might have used him
for something else.

MR. WOLSON: One of the problems that
I have is that you say things at one time and say
something else at another time and it is difficult to
understand your thinking. But I will push ahead so
that we get going and get through this examination.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: You know in 1993 -- I'm
sorry, 1in 2004 when you testified at Eurocopter -- and
we have been over that; that you said that you hired
him because of pasta -- you made a statement about that
to Mr. MacIntyre, Linden MacIntyre, on Book 3, Tab 16.
--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: Turn to page 17.

Are you with me, sir?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Page 17, near the bottom
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of the page Mr. Linden MacIntyre is saying the
following:
"The few who noticed might have
wondered. . ."

The $300,000. They are trying to
find out why you paid $300,000 to Mr. Mulroney.

MR. SCHREIBER: M'hmm.

MR. WOLSON: And you would have
recalled that because of course you were interviewed by
Mr. McIntyre.

This is what you said. I will go
right back to the middle of Mr. McIntyre's statement.

"Hardly anybody noticed that far
down in the story, he disclosed
that the 300,000 dollars was
paid in cash. The few who
noticed might have wondered,
what for? Mulroney supporters
were quick to point out that
Schreiber had started up a pasta
business, that Mulroney had
international business
connections, was on the board of
a multinational called Archer

Daniels Midland that deals in
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wheat, which is used in pasta.
So what did he do to earn
300,000 dollars?

KARLHEINZ SCHREIBER: So what
you are asking me now is...
(chuckling)"

means you're laughing.

"MR. MCINTYRE (HOST): Very
simple, what did he do?"

page:

"What had he done for the money?

Um... (chuckling)"

You're laughing again and you're

"Well, I learned, to my great
surprise, that he worked with me
on spaghetti (laughing) from
Archer Daniel. That's true.

And he sent me a brochure from
Archer Daniel. That's it.
LINDEN MACINTYRE (HOST) :
Brilliant."

you say:

"Maybe it's a pretty expensive

brochure. (Laughing)"

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6342

6343

6344

6345

6346

6347

6348

6349

6350

6351

6352

617

Do you recall being interviewed?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You're laughing there
because there was no pasta business in 1993 when you
retained Mr. Mulroney for Bear Head?

MR. SCHREIBER: If there was nothing
active and the story about the pasta came from
Mr. Mulroney's spokesperson, and I said well, the only
thing he did in the pasta business for me so far is
giving me a brochure. Which is correct, because he has
done nothing else.

MR. WOLSON: You had not hired him
for the pasta business.

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: You didn't hire him in
'93 for pasta. You didn't. That's why you're laughing
about it.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but this is
what he said.

MR. WOLSON: Yeah, but that's not --
it's not what you say.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: That's why I can't
understand why you told the judge under oath that you

hired Mr. Mulroney for pasta.
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MR. SCHREIBER: This was the first
activity in '94, Mr. Wolson. Not '93, in '94 when I
received from him the brochure. 2And I have told you
this now three or four times.

MR. WOLSON: And three or four times
it doesn't make sense, so I won't ask you any more.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay. Not for you.
I cannot help you then.

MR. WOLSON: No, I'm sure you can't.
--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: I would be content to
recess for lunch if this is convenient for you,
Mr. Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: I am in your
gentle hands, Mr. Wolson.

Break for lunch until what time?

MR. WOLSON: I have never been known
to be gentle in that regard.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: I guess it
depends on where you sit.

MR. WOLSON: I see. 1:45 or
2 o'clock, whatever you prefer.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Two o'clock
igs fine.

MR. WOLSON: Thank you.
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--- Upon recessing at 12:00 p.m. / Suspension a 12 h 00
--- Upon resuming at 2:00 p.m. / Reprise a 14 h 00

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Good
afternoon.

Be seated, please.

Mr. Wolson...

MR. WOLSON: Thank you, sir.

Good afternoon, Mr. Schreiber.

MR. SCHREIBER: Good afternoon.

MR. WOLSON: You said something to me
earlier this morning, and I never responded, but I
certainly heard you. You said that yesterday afternoon
you were tired. If you need a break, please, tell us
and we will have a break.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay. Thank you.

MR. WOLSON: I am sure the
Commissioner would do that, so please do that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Thank you very much.

MR. WOLSON: Who was it that wanted
the meeting for The Pierre Hotel on December the 8th of
19947

You had a meeting with Mr. Mulroney;
who was it who wanted that meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, it was the other

way around. I told Mr. Doucet when we spoke that I am
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in New York and that I could see Mr. Mulroney, because
I haven't seen him for a year.

MR. WOLSON: But had Mr. Mulroney,
through Mr. Doucet, asked you if you would meet with
him, or was it you who asked Fred Doucet to tell Mr.
Mulroney that you wanted to meet with him?

How did that occur?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, I just told Mr.
Doucet that I would be in New York and, as I knew that
Mr. Mulroney was quite often in New York, I asked him
whether he might be around, it would be a good time --
a good moment or time to meet, and he confirmed to me
that that would be convenient.

MR. WOLSON: It was a good time to
meet to talk about nothing?

You weren't going to talk to him --
that is, when you went to the meeting, there was no
agenda. You weren't going to have him report to you
about what he has done?

What was the purpose of the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, to speak to
him.

MR. WOLSON: About what?

MR. SCHREIBER: And to bring him

other money.
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MR. WOLSON: But what was the purpose
of talking to him, or was it only about money?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, exchanging
thoughts about the project in Montreal, as we did.

MR. WOLSON: You had to meet to do
that, you couldn't do it on the telephone?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I was in New
York, and I told him that I'm in New York, whether he
would like to see me.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: As I said to you
right now, Mr. Mulroney is quite often in New York.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Were you on your
way back to Canada?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I just came to
New York.

MR. WOLSON: From where, from Europe?

MR. SCHREIBER: From Europe, and I
went back to Europe.

MR. WOLSON: I see. So you weren't
going to be in Canada.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. The same day,
after the meeting, I went back.

MR. WOLSON: So you came to New York

for the function that you had --
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and you thought that
you would do all of this business at one time.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Let me ask you, rather
than crossing from Europe to Canada, as you did before
the Mirabel meeting, or from Europe to Canada before
the Queen Elizabeth meeting, and from Europe to New
York before The Pierre meeting, where you carried
$100,000 each time with you --

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why wouldn't you just
have gotten a cheque or a bank draft?

It would be a lot easier to cross a
border than having a wad of $1,000 bills in your
pocket.

MR. SCHREIBER: I never thought about
this because the money was there, as I told you, and
there was no account on which I could write cheques or
what -- it was just to deposit.

MR. WOLSON: You couldn't get a bank
draft?

MR. SCHREIBER: I could have asked

the bank to do something, yeah.
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MR. WOLSON: That would have created
a paper trail?

MR. SCHREIBER: That was not in my
mind.

MR. WOLSON: Was the opposite in your
mind, not creating a paper trail?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

I hadn't even thought about it. You
know, when you say paper trail, as soon as Mr. Mulroney
would have provided any services and would have
rendered an invoice, there would be a document, and
that's the only thing I would care about.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask for an
invoice?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, because there was
nothing he had done that he could invoice so far.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask for an
invoice in 1996, or ~97, or 98, or ~99, or 2000 --

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: -- and on and on and on?

Did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No. You said to the
inquiry and the Commissioner this morning that you were

hoping that Mr. Mulroney could do something in the
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Province of Quebec --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and you stated that
about the meeting at The Pierre Hotel.

Right?

You were still hopeful at The Pierre
that he could do something in Quebec.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, the new event
came up with the White Paper, and there was progress in
Quebec with Bear Head. We had Mr. Ouellet and it was
looking pretty promising, including the fourth company,
and they had looked up a site in Montreal. There was
really movement.

MR. WOLSON: The only problem in
Quebec about having Mr. Mulroney try to do something
with the Quebec government was that, on September 12th,
1994, a couple of months before this meeting, Mr.
Parizeau -- the Parti Québécois had won the election.

Did you expect Mr. Mulroney to have
some influence with Mr. Parizeau?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, that's not a
question of Mr. Parizeau alone, it could be a question
of the City of Montreal or whatever.

MR. WOLSON: So now it's the city,

not the province.
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MR. SCHREIBER: Both. Whoever is
involved.

MR. WOLSON: I see. So we have gone
from the federal government to the provincial
government to the municipal government.

MR. SCHREIBER: And if the project
would have been in a village, it would have been the
village --

MR. WOLSON: A village government, I
see.

MR. SCHREIBER: Sure, the mayor.

MR. WOLSON: Did you try to speak to
the mayor of Montreal?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: No.

Or have Mr. Mulroney do that for you?

You didn't.

MR. SCHREIBER: I had no reason to do
that.

MR. WOLSON: I just want to go back
to one area that I neglected to ask you about. I

believe you have said this before, and I want you to

confirm it, that at the QE -- the Queen Elizabeth
meeting -- or at the Mirabel meeting -- and I can't
remember which one -- you told Mr. Mulroney that you
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were thinking of suing the Canadian government because
they hadn't carried through on the promises that they
had made to you.

You did that, did you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Maybe we spoke about
this already in August, I am not sure --

MR. WOLSON: August -- but you did
speak, whether it was at the Queen Elizabeth or at
Mirabel --

MR. WOLSON: Or even earlier, I'm not
sure.

I told him. He knew that Thyssen --
after the sole-source order with General Motors, that
it was Thyssen's intention to sue, especially mine.

MR. WOLSON: Yeah.

MR. SCHREIBER: And I told you why it
didn't happen.

MR. WOLSON: But you did tell him
that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you told him that at
one of these two meetings, either Mirabel or Queen
Elizabeth.

You would say that, would you? You

have said it before, I think.
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Is that true?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Now, I asked
you this morning whether you are sure that you paid
$300,000, and you said that you were.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: TIs that because you
checked afterwards with your bank to find out how much
the withdrawals were?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: It was because you just
always knew it?

MR. SCHREIBER: Because I did it.

MR. WOLSON: Did you have any contact
with Mr. Mulroney from the December 8th, 1994 meeting
at The Pierre Hotel up until you called him about the
LOR, the Letter of Request?

MR. SCHREIBER: I think so.

MR. WOLSON: What was that contact?

Did you meet with him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, telephone.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him on the
telephone, "Brian, what are you doing for me regarding
the retainer or the moneys that I have given you"?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, we discussed the
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other matters, Stevie Cameron's book and things like
that.

MR. WOLSON: But you did call him
when you became aware of the Letter of Request.

MR. SCHREIBER: Absolutely.

MR. WOLSON: And you told Mr.
Roitenberg in your statement to the Commission that
when you called him to discuss this with him, you
called and spoke to him a number of different times?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You never --
understandably so, but you never raised with him the
payments that you had made to him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: There are two entries in

your diary, and you would find them at Book 3, Tab 30.

MR. SCHREIBER: I have no 30 in
this --

MR. WOLSON: Book 3, No. 30.

MR. SCHREIBER: There is no No. 30.
--- Pause

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay.

MR. WOLSON: You have a note in your
book at December 23rd. On the top it says, "Doucet -

It's at 7:00 a.m. Do you see that?
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MR. SCHREIBER: What year is that,
please, sir?

MR. WOLSON: December the 23rd, 1994.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So two days before
Christmas, 1994.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: In your book you have,
"Doucet, Brian, Dick Cheney."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: It's the same Dick
Cheney that later went on to be the Vice-President of
the United States?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Was there a meeting
between Mr. Doucet, Mr. Mulroney and Dick Cheney?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

MR. WOLSON: Dick Cheney was involved
with military matters before he became Vice-President?

MR. SCHREIBER: I am not directly
sure, but I know that he was heavily involved when
General Schwarzkopf used to be the commander of the
forces in Kuwait.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: He was the
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Secretary of Defence at the time.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, and there was a
request for Fox vehicles, because everybody was scared
that the Iragis could use chemical or biochemical
warfare.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask Mr. Mulroney
to speak to Dick Cheney on your behalf?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

MR. WOLSON: Then, if you would go
forward to 1995 -- it's in the same tab, just turn the
pages.

February 24th, 1995 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: On the right-hand side
you talk about Clinton.

I am assuming that was Bill Clinton?

MR. SCHREIBER: About whom?

MR. WOLSON: Are you on February
24th?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: If you go down the page
on the right-hand side, in the margin --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- it says, "Clinton in

Ottawa'".
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Did you meet him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask Mr. Mulroney

to talk to him?
MR. SCHREIBER: I really don't

recall.

MR. WOLSON: Book 3, Tab 30. It has

the words written underneath that, "Brian, Ronald,
Fred, Corbeil, Marc".
MR. SCHREIBRER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Is that related to Mr.

Clinton?

MR. SCHREIBER: I really don't
recall.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Let me,
then, ask you about the -- I would like to know from
you --

Mr. Schreiber?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.
MR. WOLSON: If you could focus on

what I am going to ask you next, please.

When did you learn for the first time

that Mr. Mulroney had killed the Bear Head Project?

MR. SCHREIBER: The first time was
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when I heard about it in the Letter of Request with

Switzerland.

MR.

WOLSON: The Letter of Request.

At page 7 of the Letter of Request

you heard about Mr. Mulroney killing the Bear Head

Project.

will go to Book 3,

you wrote to Mr.

the Ethics Committee.

March 3rd,

2008.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: That was in 19957

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you write -- I
Tab 24 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Which one?

MR. WOLSON: Book 3, Tab 24, sir.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: This is a letter that

Szabo.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Szabo was part of

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: You wrote the letter on

SCHREIBER: Yes.
WOLSON: You say at page 3:

"During the testimony of Norman
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Spector in front of the Ethics
Committee on February 5, 2008 I
learnt for the first time that
Brian Mulroney, then the Prime
Minister of Canada “killed' the
Thyssen Bear Head Project 'on
December 16, 1990.'"

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you say that if
you knew that from the Letter of Request, and the
Letter of Request was 19957

MR. SCHREIBER: I have explained this
quite often. I didn't believe it. But when Norman
Spector, under oath, testified that was the case, I had
to believe it.

MR. WOLSON: So when you read it in
the Letter of Request, when the government put it in --

At page 7 of the Letter of Request,
which is found in Book 2, Tab 116 -- and I will read it
to you, I am just giving the reference for other people
and for the record.

It says at page 7, the middle
paragraph:

"Norman SPECTOR, the Chief of

Staff of Mr. MULRONEY from 1990
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to 1992, informed the RCMP that
he was instructed by Mr.
MULRONEY to meet with the senior
government officials involved in
the approval of the Bear Head
Project to determine why the
project was being delayed and to
ensure that it was approved
expeditiously. After meeting
with these officials in 1990 or
1991, Mr. SPECTOR learned that
the Bear Head Project would cost
the Canadian government in
excess of $100 million Canadian
and recommended to Mr. MULRONEY
that the project not proceed.
Mr. MULRONEY instructed that the
project be cancelled."
SCHRETIBER: Yes.
WOLSON: You read that in 1995.
SCHRETIBER: Yes.
WOLSON: You didn't believe it.
SCHRETIBER: No.

WOLSON: Okay. You were aware of

Mulroney's testimony when he was being discovered
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by the Government of Canada on his lawsuit in 1996.

I have seen a number of excerpts in
your diary that you were following that discovery.

MR. SCHREIBER: Vaguely.

MR. WOLSON: Did you know that he
testified in 1996 that he had killed the Bear Head
Project?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

MR. WOLSON: You don't recall.

Didn't you get an opinion from a
lawyer to sue the government for the cancellation of
the Bear Head Project in 19937

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I think this
was related to the sole-source order to General Motors.

MR. WOLSON: I am going to suggest
that you got an opinion from --

MR. SCHREIBER: From Ian Scott?

MR. WOLSON: -- TIan Scott, dated
April 13th, 793, that you were suing the government
based on -- you wanted an opinion if you could sue
based on a number of different issues about the project
being cancelled.

1993, not when Mr. Spector testified
in 2008. You knew early that the Bear Head Project was

cancelled.
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You knew that.

MR. SCHREIBER: I related this to the
sole-source order to General Motors.

MR. WOLSON: You didn't appreciate
that the project was not proceeding?

MR. SCHREIBER: But nobody has told
us.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, in 1991
or ~92, Mr. Mulroney attended meetings with me and Paul
Tellier, and discussed the project and how to move it
forward.

I believed Mr. Mulroney, and I
thought it was a defence when he said he cancelled it.

MR. WOLSON: A defence?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You get an opinion to
sue the government in 1993 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- that was independent
of Mr. Mulroney.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you say that you

only learned it for the first time when Mr. Spector
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T08.

SCHREIBER: I learned it for the

first time, and believing it the first time.

MR.

in a few minutes, but I want to go to another topic.

WOLSON: I may come back to that

I

want to deal with your visit with Mr. Mulroney in The

Savoy Hotel.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: That was February of
19987

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: When had you seen Mr.

Mulroney last, before 1998, February?

MR.

MR.
The Pierre Hotel?

MR.

MR.
passed.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: I think in ~94.

WOLSON: When you met with him at

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: So four years had

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: By that time you knew

that Bear Head was not going anywhere.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: You knew that in 1995,
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as we discussed earlier today.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You had retained him to
work on Bear Head for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: 1996 goes by, 1997 goes
by, 1998.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Had you called him in
1995 to ask him what he has done for you on the Bear
Head Project?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, he had other
problems.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him in 19967

MR. SCHREIBER: No, he had other
problems.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him in 1997,
after he had won a pretty significant victory against
the Government of Canada?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Not once did you ask
him.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Did you ask him for a

statement of account?
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MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Whose idea was it to
meet at The Savoy Hotel?

That is, who wanted the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Mulroney.

MR. WOLSON: TIf he had not wanted to
meet with you at The Savoy, you wouldn't have met in
1998 with him.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I don't think so.

MR. WOLSON: So now years have gone
by since you have given him money --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and he hasn't

reported to you what he has done, he hasn't sent you an

invoice, he hasn't even --

He has done nothing, as far as you
were concerned, and you have not asked him for
anything.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: All right. 1998,
February, you meet at The Savoy in Zurich.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: What was the reason for
the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Mulroney was in

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6626

6627

6628

6629

6630

6631

6632

6633

6634

6635

6636

6637

6638

640

Switzerland at an economic summit in Davos, and I lived
in Switzerland at the time, so we agreed to meet.

MR. WOLSON: For what reason?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, to speak about
the whole situation around us. He was in trouble, I
was in trouble. There was a lot to talk about, Mr.
Wolson.

MR. WOLSON: Did he ask you any
guestions about moneys that were paid?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: What did he say?

MR. SCHREIBER: He wanted to find out
whether I have any evidence that he got paid any money.

MR. WOLSON: That he had paid money
or received money?

MR. SCHREIBER: If he had received
any money.

He wanted to know whether I know of
any evidence or whether I have any evidence about it.

MR. WOLSON: Well, there was no paper
trail, you paid him in cash.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but he asked in
principle, not only for that.

MR. WOLSON: You mean whether anyone
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else saw it?

MR. SCHREIBER: This is what his
guestion was, Mr. Wolson.

MR. WOLSON: We know that Fred Doucet
was there on one occasion; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Where?

MR. WOLSON: At The Pierre Hotel.

At The Pierre Hotel, Fred Doucet was

present when you say that you paid Mr. Mulroney

$100,000.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but he didn't
see.

MR. WOLSON: He didn't see. All
right.

Well, no one else was present at the
Queen Elizabeth; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Or at the Mirabel Hotel.

MR. SCHREIBER: Right.

MR. WOLSON: So if there is no paper
trail, and no one else is present --

MR. SCHREIBER: Correct.

MR. WOLSON: -- how would anyone know
about money being paid?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I've said this
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quite often, if Mr. Mulroney would have said, "What is
Schreiber talking about, I never received any nickel
from him," I could not have proven it.

MR. WOLSON: Maybe that goes to his
honesty.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Yeah.

He wanted to know whether there was
any evidence of it.

Right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: What did you tell him?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I told him that
I have no evidence, that he has never sent to me any
documents, nor did I give him any evidence.

I also told him what I learned from
Mr. Moores and from Fred Doucet about this request to
send money to this lawyer in Geneva, and --

MR. WOLSON: I am not going to ask
you about that, but I want to ask you this. How did he
appear to you -- Mr. Mulroney?

Did he appear nervous?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, I think he
didn't feel very comfortable.

MR. WOLSON: Did you tell the fifth
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estate, a show on which you have appeared on
occasion --

On October 31, ~07 you said to the
fifth estate: "I found Mr. Mulroney to be nervous."

Did you say that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Why did you say that?

Was it true?

MR. SCHREIBER: I saw him in
different positions, and I think he was pretty
concerned and nervous about -- that there could be any
evidence that he received money.

MR. WOLSON: I'm only asking you if
your statement is true that he appeared nervous.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Who arranged this wvisit?

MR. SCHREIBER: I think Fred Doucet.

MR. WOLSON: And who was present at
the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Mulroney and
myself.

MR. WOLSON: Anybody else in the
room?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. It could also be

that I received a call from him or that I called him,
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but I don't have this clearly in my mind any more.

When he was in Paris, I don't know
whether it was that time or another occasion, where he
also spoke quite often to my secretary though. I
cannot 100 per cent say who finally put that together.

MR. WOLSON: How long was the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: How long was the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, I can only -- I
can only guess, so I think one and a half hours to one
hour 45, because when you go to a suite and you order a
meal and you talk and then it takes a while.

MR. WOLSON: So you had a meal with
him and you talked to him.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But it was about for the
most part wanting to find out, he did of you, whether
there was any evidence that you had paid him money?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Did you say
to him then, Brian, I paid you -- he raised the
subject. Did you say: Brian, I paid you $300,000.

What have you done for it?
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Did you say that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I haven't asked
him what he has done for it.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say: Could you
give me a statement?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. We had other
problems in these days.

MR. WOLSON: I see. You discussed
other business ventures?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mainly we discussed
all the mess going on with -- coming from his lawsuit
and what I was in.

I mean, Mr. Wolson, this goes on for
15 years.

MR. WOLSON: I understand. I have
read about it.

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, there was a
lot, a lot to talk what's going on.

MR. WOLSON: Did you discuss
spaghetti?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Spaghettissimo?

MR. SCHREIBER: It could be, because
I recall that at that time things became more active

and that other Canadians came to Switzerland together
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with people from the United States to look at the

thing, and then we started somehow to make it more

active in Canada with Greg Alford.

MR.

WOLSON: Well, let's go to your

affidavit and I will read it to you, paragraph 28.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

discuss that?

MR.

MR.

--- Pause

"During the Savoy Meeting Mr.
Mulroney and I also discussed
how we could move forward with
various business matters in the
future which included Mr.
Mulroney's support of the
business activities of
Spaghettissimo North America
Inc. ('Spaghettissimo') and the
potential for Archer Daniels
Midland Company to get involved
in this new business venture."
SCHRETIBER: Yes.
WOLSON: 1Is that accurate?
SCHREIBER: That's correct, yeah.

WOLSON: All right. So you did

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: One moment, please.
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MR. WOLSON: That was 1998.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: 1999, it was a busy year
for you and a significant year for you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were arrested in
Canada on an international warrant.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were detained in
custody.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were being detained
on a warrant for a number of different allegations in
Germany?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Fraud, tax evasion,
bribery. These were the allegations.

MR. SCHREIBER: At the beginning it
was only tax evasion. Later on they made it more
spicy.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. But forgetting
the spice, it was a serious moment for you --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- in your life.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: And I know that these
are no more than allegations and they will be dealt
with at some time, but they were important to you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. But I would
like to mention that in the meantime the people which
were involved, whose activities I should have
supported, are all vindicated on fraud, on Thyssen
fraud on the Saudis, and bribery.

What is left is tax evasion.

MR. WOLSON: Now, you were at that
time and have been for a number of years a Canadian
citizen?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were arrested in
your new country, Canada.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You know that
Mr. Mulroney's position has been stated many times that
you would do anything to stay in Canada. You would
lie, you would make any statement you can, anything at
all to stay in Canada.

You know that that statement or words
to that effect have been made?

MR. SCHREIBER: This was done around

the Ethics Committee.
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MR. WOLSON: And is it true? Would
you do anything to stay in Canada, including lie or
make allegations against people?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No. It referred to a
letter which Mr. Mulroney wanted to bring to
Mr. Harper, and I was asked a whether it's all true and
I said no.

MR. WOLSON: We are going to get to
that letter, I promise you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, okay.

MR. WOLSON: But I'm asking you, I'm
asking you whether you, Karlheinz Schreiber, will do
anything to stay in Canada, including lie or make
allegations against other people.

Is that true or not?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: I want to carry on with
October of 1999.

When were you arrested?

MR. SCHREIBER: In August.

MR. WOLSON: August. October 17,
1999, about two weeks before a Fifth Estate show was
going to air -- there was going to be Fifth Estate show
October 31st.

You recall that The Fifth Estate were
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doing a story.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. It was on for
qgquite a while, ves.
--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: TIf you would look at Tab
19, please, of Book 3.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, sir.

MR. WOLSON: Are you with me?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Look to page 13, if you
will. Page 13.

MR. SCHREIBER: Fifteen?

MR. WOLSON: Oh, are there no
numbers? Page 13.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, 13.

MR. WOLSON: Thirteen. Four pages
from the end, sir.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Is your book marked with
page numbers, Mr. Schreiber?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, no, it's
handwritten, 13.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. This was another

650

interview between you and Linden McIntyre of The Fifth

Estate; right?
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Just near the top of the
page:
"October 17, 1999."
The second line down:
"The former PM..."
This is a gquestion or a statement
made by Mr. McIntyre:
"The former PM, himself a
lawyer, had a highly unusual
request for the Robert Hladun.
Mulroney wanted a written
statement from Schreiber that
'at no time did he ever solicit
or receive' money from the
German businessman. An unusual
request because it simply wasn't
true."
And he asks you:
"He called your lawyer."
Are you on the right page,
Mr. Schreiber?
MR. SCHREIBER: No, I don't think so.
I don't find this on 13.

MR. WOLSON: Are you on Tab 197
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--- Pause

MR.

MR.

MR.
it.

MR.
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SCHREIBER: Yes.

SCHREIBER: "October 17, 1999."

WOLSON : Yes.

SCHREIBER: Yes, okay. I have

WOLSON: This is a Fifth Estate

show that aired in 2007, but they are recounting 1999.

So the second paragraph that:

You

MR.

MR.

"... Mulroney wanted a written
statement from Schreiber that
'at no time did he ever solicit
or receive' money from the
German businessman. An unusual
request..."

are following me there?

SCHRETIBER: Yes, sir.

WOLSON: And Mr. McIntyre says:

"He called your lawyer."

Your answer 1s "Yeah."

You

MR.

MR.

Mr.

are with me?

SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Mr. McIntyre:
"Asking for an affidavit."

Schreiber:
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"Affidavit or declaration or
whatever. Mulroney wants some
kind of declaration or affidavit
that he never received any money

from you."

LINDEN MACINTYRE (HOST) :

"The request to deny what both
knew to be true ended up on the
desk of Edward Greenspan, a
Schreiber lawyer in Toronto. It
didn't take him long to alert

his client..."

And then you say:

"T was not prepared to do that
because it was a clear request
towards me to commit perjury.

And why would I do that?"

SCHREIBER: Correct.

MR. WOLSON: And you put that as well
in your affidavit that you swore to be true.
SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: One moment, please.

WOLSON: Paragraph 30 that you
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Schreiber.

paragraph, Mr. Wolson?

reading it,
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COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: That's at Tab

MR. WOLSON: 1I'll read it to him.

for the record.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: But I will read this to

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: What

MR. WOLSON: Paragraph 30.

"... Mr. Mulroney repeated to
Mr. Hladun a similar request as
made on prior occasions all to
the effect that I provide in an
affidavit assurances that 'at no
time did Brian Mulroney solicit
or receive compensation of any

kind from Schreiber'."

Right?

SCHREIBER: Where do you read

MR. WOLSON: Your affidavit --
SCHRETIBER: Yes...?
MR. WOLSON: -- paragraph 30. I am

paragraph 30, halfway through 30.
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MR. SCHREIBER:

"Two years after the..."

Yes, correct.

MR. WOLSON: This affidavit was sworn
to by you on 7 November 2007. That is the date of the
affidavit at the back of the affidavit and your
signature is on it.

Will you take a look at that, the
last page of the affidavit. Sworn the 7th of November
2007.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, it's okay.

MR. WOLSON: That's your signature;
right?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't have a
signature here. Yes.

--- Pause

MR. WOLSON: Now please look at Tab
15 of Book 3; Tab one-five, Book 3, because you don't
tell the whole story in your affidavit, the one that
you swore to.

Are you on Tab 157

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: This is an e-mail that
you sent to Mr. Cashore.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON:

"Hi Harvey, yes it was nice to
chat with you, even when I don't
share your views. We experience
this for ten years.

Do not misinform Canadians. I
was not asked to write a letter,
that would have involved me in
not telling the truth"

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct,
because I was asked to do an affidavit.

MR. WOLSON: Oh, I see. So you
distinguish between an affidavit and a letter?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: And this was an event
which was orchestrated because Mr. Mulroney wanted to
send a letter to the CBC, and his friend Sam Wakim was
heavily involved in this, seeing my lawyers and
discussing it. This went back and forth.

I was asked also to send a letter to
CBC, which I did.

MR. WOLSON: Well, let me complete
the picture because you have not given it accurately.

Book 2, Tab 135, I'm going to read to
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you -- I will read it to you. You don't have to go

there, but you can if you like, just to make sure that

I am reading it accurately.

Mr. Hladun.

lawyer.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Book 2 --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- Tab 135.

MR. SCHREIBRER: Yes. 135, vyes.
MR. WOLSON: Have you got it?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Are you there?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: A letter to the CBC from

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Hladun was your

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: One of them in Edmonton.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: "I have learned that the
CBC has referenced that they
have evidence..."

Underlined:

", .. that the writer was asked
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to have Mr. Schreiber provide a
letter to Mr. Mulroney that 'at
no time did Mr. Mulroney solicit
or receive compensation of any
kind from Mr. Karlheinz
Schreiber'.

First off, to my mind, there is
no such evidence because I never
had a conversation with Brian
Mulroney about compensation.

The only conversations I had
with anyone were in the context
of and limited to the
allegations of improper payments
made as referenced in the
September, 1995, Letter of
Request delivered by the
Canadian government to the Swiss
authorities, in what became
known as the 'Airbus' case. My
retainer was directed to the
allegations stated in that
Letter of request.

I am forwarding this letter to

hopefully clarify any
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misunderstanding of comments
attributed to me."

That's a letter March 17, 2005.

Why didn't you include that in your
affidavit so the truth would be out about that point?
Why didn't that happen?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't understand
your question correctly.

MR. WOLSON: Why didn't you tell the
whole story in the affidavit? Why didn't you tell the
story about the letter from your lawyer, Mr. Hladun,
who as noted commented as I have just said? You left
that out, did you?

MR. SCHREIBER: There were more than
one letters sent to CBC on the request of Mr. Mulroney.

MR. WOLSON: The letter that I read
to you, sir --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- answers your
paragraph 30.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You don't tell the whole
story in your sworn document.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I didn't even --

MR. WOLSON: You what?
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MR. SCHREIBER: I didn't even speak
about this letter from Mr. Hladun.

MR. WOLSON: Yes, we know that.

I want to continue on in 1999. Book
3, Tab 19.

Before I go there, I want to ask you
a couple of questions and then we will reference -- I

will give you the reference again.

First of all, did you become aware
that Mr. Mulroney was going to make a voluntary tax
declaration or disclosure to the tax department in
1999? Did you become aware of that?

MR. SCHREIBER: That that was his
intention?

MR. WOLSON: Yes, regarding the money
you paid him.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Now take a look
at Tab 19, Book 3, page 14, which is three pages from
the end of that tab.

MR. SCHREIBER: Tab 3, yes.

MR. WOLSON: The tab is 19,

Mr. Pratte, and I'm looking at page 14, which is three
pages from the end.

This is again your interview with
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Mr. McIntyre on October 30, '07. Mr. McIntyre asks

you, at the top of the page:

MR.
say, sir?

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

"The Britan account, and those
withdrawals adding up to

$300,000, created a brand-new
headache for the former prime
minister, an inconvenience --"

SCHREIBER: What page did you

WOLSON: Page 14.
SCHREIBER: Forty?
WOLSON: Fourteen, one-four.

SCHREIBER: There is something

wrong. You said Tab 37

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

WOLSON: No. I'm sorry. Tab 19.
SCHREIBER: Nineteen.

WOLSON: Yes, please.

SCHREIBER: Yes...? And then?
WOLSON: Page 14, one-four.
SCHREIBER: One-four.

WOLSON: Mr. McIntyre is talking

at the top of the page about $300,000.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.
WOLSON :

"The Britan account, and those
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withdrawals adding up to

$300,000..."

Do you see where that starts?

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes. Yes, I see 1it.

MR. WOLSON: So he is clearly talking

about the $300,000 in

MR.

payments; right?

SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

Then

Your

"The payments, five years
earlier, had been in cash. He
hadn't paid the taxes when he
got the money. Now he made a
voluntary disclosure of the
"income'. But the tax man would
want to know where the money
came from and what it was for."
the interviewer says to you:
"How do we know you know about
the voluntary tax declaration?"
answer is:

"I learned this from my lawyer.
Imagine you are my lawyer and I
tell you we need an affidavit
from Schreiber that he never

received, that he never gave any
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money to me. Two days later I
tell you, you know what, call
Revenue Canada, the two of us
have to go there, I have to make
a voluntary disclosure."

So it appears that you knew about his
voluntary disclosure. Did you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but you asked
me before whether I knew about his intention. I didn't
know that.

MR. WOLSON: Well, were you not
called, according to this gquote that you gave to the
CBC?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. This is when I
learned that he has done a voluntary disclosure.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. When did he --
when did you find out that he had done a disclosure?

MR. SCHREIBER: Somehow at the end of
'99.

MR. WOLSON: And were you called?
Were you asked to go down with him?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Because that's what you
have said.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. My lawyer told
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me.
MR. WOLSON: Well:
"Two days later I tell you, you
know what, call Revenue Canada,
the two of us have to go there,
I have to make a voluntary
disclosure."
Were you asked why someone to go to

the tax department?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I made an

example, if I would say to my lawyer on one day we need

to get an affidavit from Schreiber that I never
received any money and the next day I say, as
Mr. Mulroney to the same lawyer, and now you call
Revenue Canada, you and I have to go there for a
voluntary disclosure.

MR. WOLSON: Were you told that you
had --

MR. SCHREIBER: This is what this
sentence means. I was not involved in that.

MR. WOLSON: Were you told that you
had to go for a voluntary disclosure?

MR. SCHREIBER: Me, no.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. Were you asked?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. I was not
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involved.

MR. WOLSON: Was your lawyer asked --
was your lawyer told that you should go and make a
voluntary disclosure to the tax department?

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, you
misread the sentence. Excuse me.

I said, Mr. Schreiber, I learned this
from my lawyer. Imagine you are my lawyer and I tell
you we need an affidavit from Schreiber.

MR. WOLSON: Okay, stop there. Your
lawyer told you that you need an affidavit; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Continue.

MR. SCHREIBER: But I said this as an
example to Mr. McIntyre.

MR. WOLSON: Yes...?

MR. SCHREIBER: Imagine you are my
lawyer. Mr. McIntyre, you are my lawyer and I tell you
you have to get an affidavit from Schreiber that I
never received any money.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: And the next day I
tell you, you, Mr. McIntyre being my lawyer, now you go
to Revenue Canada and make a voluntary disclosure.

I haven't read what I said there, but
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I can tell you what I said. I would be embarrassed. I
would hope the earth would open and I would disappear.
How could I do this to my lawyer?

MR. WOLSON: Were you asked by
your --

MR. SCHREIBER: H'm?

MR. WOLSON: Was your lawyer asked
and did he tell you that the Mulroney side wants you to
be involved in the voluntary disclosure?

MR. SCHREIBER: Me?

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I don't
know --

MR. WOLSON: Answer the question.

MR. SCHREIBER: No. I don't know why
you say this. It is simply not there.

MR. WOLSON: Were you asked that
guestion by your lawyer, yes or no-?

MR. SCHREIBER: That I should be
involved in --

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: Okay.

Now, things changed a bit in 1999

when on The Fifth Estate show -- and I think you will
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be aware of this -- one of Mr. Mulroney's spokesmen,
Luc Lavoie, made a statement about you.
6931 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6932 MR. WOLSON: He said:
"... Karlheinz Schreiber is the
biggest fucking liar the world

has ever seen. That's what we

believe."
6933 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6934 MR. WOLSON: Your response to that

comes on The Fifth Estate show, same tab, Book 3 --
same book I should say, Book 3, Tab 19.
6935 You said:
"... I thought what the hell is
this for and I got the message.
I must say that the message got
pretty fast. This is how more
or less dummies or little
children play these games."
6936 MR. SCHREIBER: Where is that?
6937 MR. WOLSON: That's tab -- the same

Tab 19, page 10.

6938 Are you on Tab 197
6939 MR. SCHREIBER: Page 107?
6940 MR. WOLSON: Ten, the very bottom of
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MR.

MR.

MR.
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SCHREIBER: At the bottom?
WOLSON: Yes.
SCHRETIBER: Yes...?
WOLSON :
"... I thought what the hell is
this for and I got the message."
as I have read.
"T must say that message got
pretty fast. This is how more
or less dummies or little
children play these games."
SCHRETIBER: Yes...?

WOLSON: That was your response

Lavoie's comments which were --

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: And I'm assuming that

Mr. Lavoie's comments hurt you.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes, because it was

related to the $300,000 in the Britan account.

MR.

WOLSON: Yes. And it hurt you.

Did you eventually sue Mr. Lavoie?

well?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Did you sue the CBC as
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SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: So 1999 is quite a year

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: The last thing that I

want to cover in 1999 is your meeting with Fred Doucet

right after Christmas.

Fred Doucet?

his house?

December --

come about?

for coffee.

Do you remember that?

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: How did that come about?

First of all, you met at his house,

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Please...?

WOLSON: You met Fred Doucet at

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Boxing Day, 26th of
SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON : -- 1999°?

SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: How did that meeting

SCHREIBER: Well, Fred invited us
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MR. WOLSON: You and your wife?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Do you know whether or
not your friend from Nova Scotia made the -- Mr.

MacKay, Elmer MacKay,

whether or not he was the one

that asked Fred to call you?

MR.

SCHREIBER: To call me, also my

wife and me because we are so lonesome.

MR.

MR.

MR.

that's --

MR.

WOLSON : Yes.
SCHREIBER: It's mere nonsense.

WOLSON: Nonsense. So if

SCHREIBER: Mr. MacKay would

never ask Mr. Doucet for favours.

MR.
involved in this --
MR.
MR.
MR.

MR.

WOLSON: Okay. So MacKay is not

SCHREIBER: Not at all.
WOLSON: -- setting this up?
SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: This is something

Mr. Doucet does, calls you and invites you and your

wife over on Boxing Day.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: Yes.

WOLSON: Do you know the purpose

of being invited there?

StenoTran



671

6986 MR. SCHREIBER: No, but Fred and his
wife had been at our house before, and since we had all
these troubles and we spoke on the phone very much
about all the trouble with Mr. Mulroney, the same
letter of request, we were in contact and up to that
time we were not enemies.

6987 MR. WOLSON: And this meeting was

about a couple of months after the Luc Lavoie

comment --
6988 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6989 MR. WOLSON: -- on television?
6990 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6991 MR. WOLSON: TIf you would look to Tab

4 of Book 3, the same book you are on, I can tell

you -- are you on Tab 3, sir?
6992 COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Tab 3 or 4°?
6993 MR. WOLSON: Tab 3, I believe.
6994 Tab 4, excuse me.
6995 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6996 MR. WOLSON: Book 3, Tab 4.
6997 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
6998 MR. WOLSON: Are you with me?
6999 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
7000 MR. WOLSON: There is a note at the

top, December 26, 1999. Do you see that?
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Two to 5:00 p.m.

I can tell you that I expect Mr.
Doucet to say -- just if you will, please, I want to
ask you this, or at least give you this information
before I ask you about this.

Mr. Doucet will say that he met with
you on December 26, 1999 and then he made notes of the
conversation and these are the notes.

So I want to go over these notes and
see whether or not they are accurate, in your opinion.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: The notes were made, I
should tell you, in handwriting and later typed, but
leave that aside. We will use the typed version
because it is easier to read.

The first part deals with Luc Lavoie:

"I spoke with him..."

You say, according to Mr. Doucet:
"... and his apology rang
shallow.

- I'm going to have him
discovered. I want to know who
he means by 'we'."

Because the comment was "'we' think
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he's a..." -- I used the words before and I won't use

them again.

You know what I'

you, Mr. Schreiber?

Mr. Schreiber...:

MR. SCHREIBER:

out what it is here.

m referring to,

2

Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Well,

it to you.
MR. SCHREIBER:

MR. WOLSON: So

Yeah.

just pay attention to

the questions I'm going to ask you.

MR. SCHREIBER:

Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: Okay.

to the comments that Mr. Lavoie made on television

about you.

MR. SCHREIBER:

MR. WOLSON: You remember the

comments?

MR. SCHREIBER:

MR. WOLSON: You probably will never

forget them, I'm sure.
MR. SCHREIBER:
MR. WOLSON: Is

Mr. Doucet has written here:
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"I spoke with him..."
Meaning you spoke to Lavoie:
"... and his apology rang
shallow."
Is that true?
MR. SCHREIBER: I called Luc Lavoie?
MR. WOLSON: Did you speak to Luc
Lavoie?
MR. SCHREIBER: No.
MR. WOLSON:
"I'm going to have him
discovered."
Did you say that you Mr. Doucet?
MR. SCHREIBER: No. I think I told
him I am going to sue him.
MR. WOLSON:
"T want to know what he means by
'we' . "
Did you say that?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, it could be.
MR. WOLSON:
"Kaplan's book is flawed in
several key pages particularly
in the very first pages.

When airbus case broke the first
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call I got

was from Lalonde."

And he talks about that in the second

paragraph.
MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

WOLSON :

Yes.

"People are going to be very

surprised about the individual

we're going to discover."

This is the lawsuit you are talking

about of Mr. Lavoie and the CBC.

MR.

MR.
you had in Edmonton,

MR.

MR.
things?

MR.

"When I'm finished we will know

that Rock,
about what

SCHREIBER:

Gray, Chrétien, knew
the RCMP were doing."

Yes.

WOLSON: That's about the lawsuit

I take it?

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

WOLSON: Okay. Did you say those

SCHREIBER:

I could have said

things or similar things to him, but not on that

occasion.

MR.

WOLSON: Well, he wrote them down

as being on that occasion.

MR.

SCHREIBER:
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MR. WOLSON: Well, is it true or not?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall that

MR. WOLSON: Did you say those things
on December 26th?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall that T
spoke about this on this occasion. I for sure have
told him that Marc Lalonde was the first one who called
me on the Airbus when the story broke on Airbus,
because Marc Lalonde, who is for sure not a friend of
Mulroney, told me.

MR. WOLSON: Did you tell him this on
the 26th of December 19997

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I don't think so.

MR. WOLSON: Let's look at the third
paragraph.

"When we discover Proust..."

Prost was a lawyer who drafted the
LOR; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"When we discover Proust we're
going to ask her whether she had
sex with a member of the German

Prosecution team before or after
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she wrote her letter."

Did you say that to --

MR. SCHREIBER: Nonsense. No.

MR. WOLSON: Fourth paragraph:
"Ironically, this extradition
hearing is going to resolve the
whole issue for Brian because
when we get the German
prosecutor in for discovery we
will have him reveal what they
have found from the thorough
examination of the accounts in
Swiss and German banks. They
will have to admit that in all
those accounts there is not a
single reference to Brian. They
can't have it both ways -- if
they wish to use that evidence
to extradite me that means they
wish to have those accounts
taken seriously -- if they do
that fully exonerates Brian."

Did you see that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Skip over the next
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paragraph because it's not relevant.
"Brian should know..."

MR. SCHREIBER: But again -- I
apologize, but again I don't know whether I said things
like this on that day.

MR. WOLSON: All right. But you
can't say you didn't. You can't say that you didn't
say these things on that day. You may have said them;
you may not. But you did say them at one time.

Is that your evidence?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, I could say
that.

MR. WOLSON: Okay.

MR. SCHREIBER: Or similar things.

MR. WOLSON:

"Brian should know who his best
friend is. It is not the many
he thinks they are. It is you."

You are telling Fred this.

"He should have made you a
Senator instead of the many so
called friends who did not serve
him well and would do nothing
for him today, like ..."

And you mentioned some names. Right?

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

7073

7074

7075

7076

7077

7078

7079

7080

7081

7082

679

Did you say that to him on that

occasion?

MR.

SCHREIBER: I don't recall.

MR. WOLSON: The next paragraph:

"I cannot understand why Brian
did not tell me along the way
why he wouldn't support the Nova
Scotia project. If he had told
me he couldn't do it for
whatever reason I would have
accepted it. He never told

me -- so I kept pushing it.

However, I'm over that now."

Did you say that?

MR.

SCHREIBER: On one occasion for

sure we spoke about that; that Brian never told me the

project is dead.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. So these comments

were said. Whether they were said on the 26th December

'99 or not --

MR.

occasion.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER: -- or on another

WOLSON: -- you can't say.
SCHREIBER: It could be.

WOLSON :

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

7083

7084

7085

7086

7087

7088

7089

7090

7091

7092

680

"Brian is a great guy. I wish
we could have done that Thyssen
project -- he would now have a
great client on the
international scale."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say that?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. For sure not on
that day, but --

MR. WOLSON: Did you say it on
another day to Mr. Doucet?

MR. SCHREIBER: I have no
recollection of this.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: "International
scale", no.

MR. WOLSON: And you indicate that
you have decided to increase the amount of damage in
your claims against the CBC and The Fifth Estate.

"I have also launched a new suit
against each of them based on
the last broadcast."

MR. SCHREIBER: That's correct.

MR. WOLSON: Did you say that to

Mr. Doucet?
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MR. SCHREIBER: I think that's

correct.

MR. WOLSON: 1Is it your evidence that

the things that I have read to you from Mr. Doucet's

memo were said at one time, but as to whether or not it

was the 26th of December '99 you're not sure?

MR. SCHREIBER: Parts of it could
have been said, not everything.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

MR. SCHREIBER: So the points you

said weren't said were never said?

MR. SCHREIBER: For example, what has

Mrs. Prost to do with the German prosecution?

MR. WOLSON: You never said that?

MR. SCHREIBER: The letter of request

went to Switzerland.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: I mean, that's
absolutely nonsense.

MR. WOLSON: So he would have made
that up?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay.

Well, it's about 3:10.

Mr. Commissioner, I have a ways to go
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yet. Perhaps we could take the afternoon break.

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: All right.

We will break now until 3:25 then.

--- Upon recessing at 3:10 p.m.

--- Upon resuming at 3:30 p.m.

/ Suspension a 15 h 10

/ Reprise & 15 h 30

COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: Be seated,

please.

Mr. Wolson...?

MR. WOLSON: Mr. Schreiber, I just
want to tell you it's about 25 minutes to 4:00. I'm

going to cover one more area with you today, which

probably will take about half an hour, and then I'm

going to suggest that we retire for the day and come

back tomorrow,

clock that way.

thank vyou.

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

WOLSON: So

just so you know you can adjust your

Very kind of you,

you had this meeting

with Mr. Doucet on Boxing Day and we have just gone

over that meeting.

Mr. Doucet,

Day of 19997

MR.

MR.

SCHREIBER:

Yes.

WOLSON: When had you last seen

let's say for a meeting, before the Boxing

When had you last met with him?

MR.

SCHREIBER:
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meeting was in New York.

MR. WOLSON: So you had not seen him
for about five years?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And out of the blue he
called you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, but in the
meantime we spoke on the telephone quite often.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. And he called you
and you went to his house and you -- how long were you
at the house for on the 26th?

Mr. Doucet says in his memorandum
that you were there for about three hours. Is that --

MR. SCHREIBER: It could be. We went
and spent the afternoon with him, yes.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Did you talk to
him privately for three hours?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. We were with our
wives and his child was there. We had coffee and -- it
was a social event.

MR. WOLSON: How long -- obviously
you talked to him at one time privately that day.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. We went --
shortly before we left I went with him downstairs. He

wanted to show me a room -- I think his television
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or -- what can I say, entertainment room. And this is
when I told him make sure you tell your friend that if
I have to testify, I will not commit perjury.

MR. WOLSON: So you told him that on
the Boxing Day?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And when you said if you
have to testify, in what relation was that?

Where were you going to be
testifying?

MR. SCHREIBER: I say if I would have
to testify, my case or whatever.

MR. WOLSON: Your case in Edmonton?

MR. SCHREIBER: My case in Edmonton
or with my extradition case.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. So if you were
going to be called on as a witness --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- you are going to --
you told them you wouldn't commit perjury.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah. Yeah there was
one more, Mr. Wolson. You recall that I sued then Luc
Lavoie --

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: -- and CBC.
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MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: So it was very
obvious that discoveries would come up and gquestions
would be raised.

MR. WOLSON: Yes. You had enough
lawsuits out there that it was inevitable you were
likely going to be a witness somewhere, sometime.

MR. SCHREIBER: Absolutely.

MR. WOLSON: And when you were
talking about telling your friend, you meant Brian
Mulroney?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And when you were
talking about committing perjury, you wouldn't commit
perjury, you were talking about the payment of monies
to Mr. Mulroney?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you have this meeting
on the 26th, and then I'm advised that you had another
meeting on the 11th of January.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. After this
meeting with him on the second Christmas day, quite a
few events happened.

MR. WOLSON: Let me back up, because

the one thing I forgot to ask you. You went downstairs
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to a room you said --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- or to a room
somewhere in his residence.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, downstairs. It
was somehow an open area.

MR. WOLSON: All right. How long was
it that you talked to him then? What kind of time are
we talking about?

MR. SCHREIBER: Not more than 10 or
15 minutes.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: Because Mr. Doucet
tried immediately to convince me that I should not
worry. Nothing was wrong with Mr. Mulroney's testimony
in Montréal; that people got it all wrong; that he
testified he never had had any business with me also.

I didn't understand, quite frankly.

MR. WOLSON: So that happened in the
10 minutes on Boxing Day?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, not more, maybe
15.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: On the way out.

MR. WOLSON: Did you meet with him on
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the 11th of January of 2000 at the Royal York Hotel in
Toronto?

MR. SCHREIBER: I don't have the date
in my head, but when you have it from the daytimer yes,
I met with him some time at the Royal York.

MR. WOLSON: I wonder if you could
take a look at Book 3, Tab 6.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: These are notes, again
typewritten notes, that Mr. Doucet says represent what
was saild between you and Mr. Doucet on the January 11,
2000 meeting.

And I am going to go over them with
you, but I just want to set the stage.

These are notes that are typewritten.
What he says, I expect he will say, is that after the
meeting he reduced the notes -- or he reduced the
conversation you had with him to writing and then later
had these notes typed.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay.

MR. WOLSON: So they are his
memoranda of what happened on that day.

So let me ask you, then: You met
with him at the Royal York Hotel, did you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: Who had the room there?

MR. SCHREIBER: I'm not -- I'm not
even sure. I have no recollection that there was a
room. I could have met with him at the restaurant or
in the bar or wherever.

MR. WOLSON: It says at the top of
the memorandum:

"4:30 Royal York, Toronto K.S.
and J.A.D. room 5-271"

MR. SCHREIBER: Well then Mr. Doucet
might have had the room there.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. And what was the
purpose of the meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: I think he called and
wanted to meet with me.

MR. WOLSON: And were you in Toronto
at the time?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You were living in
Toronto?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And Mr. Doucet called to
meet with you?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And you went to the
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Royal York Hotel for a meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And how long was the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Strangely, I have to
say I have nearly no recollection at all on the day
with him at the Royal York.

I recall another meeting with him,
but that one is somehow nearly out of my memory.

MR. WOLSON: Well, then you may not
be able to answer this. Do you know the purpose of the
meeting?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes. He wanted to
continue the discussion we had on Boxing Day.

MR. WOLSON: So it was clear to you
that the Boxing Day discussion where you said to him
you would not commit perjury --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- wasn't a finished
discussion.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Had you finished it?

MR. SCHREIBER: ©No, I expected that
after what I had told him he should tell Brian, that he

would come back now and wanted to talk about it.
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MR. WOLSON: And I'm assuming, based
on the Luc Lavoie comments, that you are -- you had met
with Brian Mulroney in the hotel in Zlrich --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: The Savoy; right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: You had met with him in
1998.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: When you met with him
you were on a friendly relationship with him. You were
friends.

MR. SCHREIBER: Absolutely.

MR. WOLSON: But I'm assuming when
you said tell your friend, and talking to Fred Doucet
on Boxing Day, later in 1999, that you weren't very
happy with Mr. Mulroney, based on the Luc Lavoie
comments.

MR. SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I think
it i1s necessary to put a sentence to you on that.

Before the show was aired it was two
hours or so earlier in Nova Scotia, and Elmer MacKay
gave me a call and said look, there is an unbelievable
story what this Luc Lavoie is doing and Brian has

nothing to do with it. He is absolutely furious about
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it. So don't worry about it and this will be all
fixed.

So this is why I of course expected
an apology, because I don't care about the spokesman, I
care who is the boss. 2And the boss -- if the spokesman
says something, he speaks on behalf of the boss.

And you can imagine that I was pretty
angry about it.

MR. WOLSON: So when he called you,
Lavoie, what he called you on the television show --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- you were believing
that Mr. Mulroney would call you and apologize?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And say that, you know,
Mr. Lavoie may have said that but I don't believe that.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And that never happened?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Or did it happen?

MR. SCHREIBER: No. Besides this --
and this is how my anger started, and I think I have to
add this, too.

When I heard nothing on this any more

and I prepared to sue, a journalist from Germany who
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was earlier with 60 Minutes, a very qualified man, came
to me and said: Look, you shouldn't sue CBC. You are
going to lose your case there. What they told you is a
lie.

The story was Harvey Cashore from
Fifth Estate had been on a Saturday evening with Luc
Lavoie at his home --

MR. WOLSON: I don't want you to get
into triple and gquadruple hearsay.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, only that. But
they both got all drunk and Harvey taped everything.

But then when the journalist arrived
he told me no, it's not true.

MR. WOLSON: Well, I can tell you
that Mr. Cashore is not a witness here.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: And let's not go too far

afield.

MR. SCHREIBER: Okay.

MR. WOLSON: Let's stay focused.

MR. SCHREIBER: At least I heard the
tape.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. From your point
of view, you were upset because you hadn't heard from

Mr. Mulroney to apologize.
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MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: All right. That sets

the stage of you being upset.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you then have this

meeting at the Royal York --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: -- and, from your

perspective, it is a continuation of the meeting that

you had had at Mr. Doucet's house on Boxing Day.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: The conversation hadn't

ended, but you had family obligations.

MR. SCHREIBER: No, I sent

information and I expected an answer.

MR. WOLSON: All right. So you

meet -- and I am going to review this memo with you.

Not all of it,

because it's not all relevant, but let's

talk about Point 2 on the memo.

Lavoie?

"Luc" -- did you talk about Luc

MR. SCHREIBER: For sure.
MR. WOLSON:
"I gave him a letter. I

commented the setting that
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provoked Luc and how out of
context the quote was. I told
him how irate you were about
Luc's statement regardless of
provocation and that you had
called him in S.A. and given him
hell. Then I probed what good
would be served by proceeding
with a suit."

in effect, Mr. Doucet is saying,

what good would there be in a lawsuit, and what you

according to Mr. Doucet, was:

"...Well he did me a lot of harm
in Germany -- my friends from
there are asking me why a
spokesperson for BM would call
me a liar. No amount of apology
on his part will satisfy them.
He must pay for his lack of
professionalism. BM should not
get into this. He should tell
him “Look you hurt K.S. and you
hurt me, so solve your

problem -- in any event

Fred, ..."
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7249 This is you talking, according to Mr.
Doucet:
", ..you know these guys are
accustomed to shooting with

their lips and getting away with

it -- this time he won't..."
7250 MR. SCHREIBER: That could very well
be. I mean, I don't recall this conversation, but it
makes sense to me.
7251 MR. WOLSON: All right. Then, Point
3:
"Now on our friend [Brian
Mulroney] ..."
7252 It says "B.M.". We will assume
that's Brian Mulroney.
7253 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
7254 MR. WOLSON:

"...I was quite taken by your
concerns at our house regarding
an apparent statement that Brian
made. Since you had invited me
to tell B.M. everything, I did.
And Brian quite frankly could
not understand where you would

be of that impression.

StenoTran



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

7255

7256

7257

7258

7259

7260

7261

696

Subsequently however, he went to
the text of his discoveries and
found the section where you may
have misunderstood what he said
and the context of the line of
guestioning."
Did you talk to him about Mr.
Mulroney's discovery?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, I told you that
he immediately --
MR. WOLSON: Yes?
MR. SCHREIBER: -- told me about
this -- I got it wrong. Mulroney had said that I had.
And maybe this is exactly what he
did, as you show me that now.
MR. WOLSON: Okay. I will finish
reading it.
"T have brought you that
section..."
-- Mr. Doucet says to you:
"...and I am prepared to get you
the entire transcript if you'd
like."
Did he bring a section? Did you have

a section of Mr. Mulroney's discovery transcript?
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MR. SCHREIBER: I don't recall, but I
think it's possible.

MR. WOLSON: All right. And then,
according to Mr. Doucet, you say:

"Fred, I fully understand now
and I can see how Brian would
have been concerned when you
reported to him. O.K. Fred this
fully clears that up. I now
understand. So there is no
problem here any more."

Did you do that?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, when he
explained to me that what Brian Mulroney said was no
perjury, was no problem, I said, "Well, if you take
that position, it's fine with me."

MR. WOLSON: What was he talking
about?

MR. SCHREIBER: The question was
whether Brian Mulroney had said that he never had any
dealings with me.

MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: And this was a
misunderstanding, I was told, that he had said when he

was discovered "I never had any dealings with Mr.
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Schreiber."

I, quite frankly, didn't understand
too much what the difference was, but when they were
all lawyers, and when they said, "That's fine," then
it's fine with me. You got my message, and that's it,
bingo.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. You just accepted
it, even though you didn't understand it. You accepted
it in the spirit in which it was told to you.

MR. SCHREIBER: If they were fine
with it, if it was no problem for him, then why would I
care?

MR. WOLSON: Well, let's forget about
the bottom of the page, because I am going to come back
to that in a minute.

Flip the page over, will you, please?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: At Point 4 you talk
about Germany, and what's happening in Germany. Do you
recall this conversation?

I don't think I have to go into it,
except it's about Helmut Kohl and difficulties in
Germany and --

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, and the

Bavarian premier who wanted to become chancellor.
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MR. WOLSON: Yeah.

Did you have a talk about --

MR. SCHREIBER: Could be.

MR. WOLSON: What I don't understand
is, you have a conversation on the 26th of December, at
Mr. Doucet's house, and he invites you to come to the
Royal York Hotel, and you talk about things that -- it
seems strange that Mr. Doucet would call you and invite
you to the Royal York to talk about the problems
happening in Germany.

MR. SCHREIBER: Well, Mr. Mulroney
and Mr. Kohl had a good relationship -- and I mentioned
this earlier -- this was of great importance because
Mr. Mulroney was involved in reunification and Mr. Kohl
was the Chancellor after reunification. So he knew
that.

The meeting was because of this
situation with the perjury and his testimony and that
lawsuit when his settlement was on in Montreal, and
besides this, he may have asked out of courtesy, "How
is Mr. Kohl doing," or, "What is the situation in
Germany?" It could very well --

MR. WOLSON: So it was just talk
between two friends.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
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MR. WOLSON: All right. Let's go to
Point 5. It starts off with "Timing", and it's
obviously you talking, because it says:

"We have suggested dates. We
expect now the discoveries will
start in Feb. Prost, her Boss,
then Thompson, then Rock.™"

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"Then a long list including
Chretien."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON:

"On my own initiatives -- we're
going to let these
discoveries..."

-- and you go on.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: So you are talking,
then, about you having discoveries in your case in
Edmonton.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: And I am assuming, to
put it in proper context, that you would have had to

have testified on those discoveries at one point.
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MR. SCHREIBER: Not only that, Mr.
Wolson, Mr. Mulroney and I sued the government, and we
received apologies from Mr. Rock and Mr. Murray, and
Mr. Mulroney got his settlement, and I told Mr. Rock,
"I received your apology. I read it. I don't accept
it, I'll see you in court."

MR. WOLSON: All right, but what I
want to ask you, just to put it in context, is: Did
you expect that you would be testifying at some point
there?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes, and also Mr.
Mulroney, because we, more or less, were on the same
wavelength, that we would fight this to an end,
especially with all the things with Stevie Cameron,
Allan Rock and all this mess around the Letter of
Request.

MR. WOLSON: All right. Then I want
to go back to paragraph 3, which is a page earlier.

You have just said that you may have
to testify, and Mr. Mulroney may have to testify, so
now I want to deal with the second paragraph in Point
No. 3.

This is Mr. Doucet talking to you.

"Now K.S...."

That's you.
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MR. SCHREIBER: One second, now.
What tab is it that you are in?
MR. WOLSON: I'm sorry, Tab 6. It's
the same document.
Book 3, Tab 6.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: This is the document
that we discussed just a moment or two ago, but I left
out one paragraph because I went to the following page.
Are you on the first page of that?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Do you see the number 37
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.
MR. WOLSON: Okay. I asked you about
the first part of the paragraph, but now I want to ask
you about the second paragraph.
Okay?
MR. SCHREIBER: M'hmm.
MR. WOLSON: I am going to read it to
you. This is Mr. Doucet talking.
"Now K.S...."

-- that's you:
"...let us imagine that what you
had in mind when you called me

to set up the Mirabel meeting
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etc. regarding M.B.'s..."

-- that's Mr. Mulroney --

MR.

MR.

So,

SCHRETIBER: Yes.

WOLSON :
"...consultancy internationally
comes out during your
discoveries."

according to Mr. Doucet's note,

he is trying to ask you about what you had in mind when

you called Mr. Mulroney about the Mirabel meeting.

All right?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Are you following me?
MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Was that said to you?
MR. SCHREIBER: No.

It states that I never spoke with him

what I wanted to discuss with Brian Mulroney at

Mirabel. What we wanted to discuss was said at

Harrington Lake, and

MR.

Fred Doucet was never around.
WOLSON: Did he say this:
"May I presume you will disclose
the same as I understood the
consultancy to be. The occasion

of Elmer's luncheon party was to
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propose to M.B. that you would
want him to keep a watching
brief world wide over a three
year horizon and to report
periodically on possible
opportunities for your companies
and that for the service you
were prepared to pay a fee and
expenses."

SCHREIBER: 1It's all nonsense.
WOLSON :

"Let me stop you there Fred."

-- you were supposed to have said:

"Brian and I had discussed this
before particularly in the

context of place keeping..."

-- I am sure it would be "peacekeeping" --

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

SCHRETIBER: Yeah.

WOLSON :
"...[peacekeeping] programs and
also dealing with the reunified
Germany."

SCHRETIBER: Yeah.

WOLSON :

"So, OK, K.S. so you had a
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mandate which was acceptable to

M.B."

And you said, "Yes, that's right."

Did you have that conversation?

MR.

SCHREIBER: ©No, I never discussed

with him a mandate regarding Mr. Mulroney at all, at no

time.

MR.

WOLSON: And he goes on and says:

"Now..."

-- he is speaking to you:

"...if you are asked under oath
about the post 1993 period is

this what you are going to say."

Did he ask you that?

MR.

SCHREIBER: Mr. Wolson, I just

tried to find where that 1is.

bottom.

under oath..."

bottom?

MR.

MR.

MR.

Do

MR.

MR.

WOLSON: Four lines from the

SCHREIBER: Let me stop you --

WOLSON: "Now if you are asked

you see that, four lines from the

SCHREIBER: Yeah.

WOLSON :
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"Now if you are asked under oath
about the post 1993 period is
this what you are going to say."

MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

MR. WOLSON: Did he ask you about
what you were going to say when you were a witness?

MR. SCHREIBER: "What about financial
arrangements?"

He might have asked what I would
testify about my relationship with Mr. Mulroney, but
about financial arrangements, or whatever, this is --

MR. WOLSON: Go ahead, finish.

No?

MR. SCHREIBER: I didn't discuss
things with him like this.

MR. WOLSON: "Well Fred,..." you are
supposed to have said:

"...I can't perjure myself so I
guess if asked that's what I
would say. What about the
financial arrangements?"

You say:

"Well it could have been an
advance or a loan -- I don't

really fully recall but I guess
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it is only relevant in the
context of my taxes so let's
wait a while since I won't be
discovered for a long time..."
Did you say that?
MR. SCHREIBER: Never.
MR. WOLSON: But he has written this.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, but I have no
tax problems or anything with it, it is --
MR. WOLSON: But he has written this.
MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.
MR. WOLSON: Was the money you gave
Mr. Mulroney, the $300,000, an advance or a loan?
MR. SCHREIBER: No.
MR. WOLSON: What was it?
MR. SCHREIBER: But, you know, I paid
him for future services. But I said to Fred -- I think
I recall this -- I don't know what this is all about.

I have no proof of everything. What is he doing with

all this?

I mean, if he would have said, "It's
a loan," I could not prove it's not. If he would have
said, "It's an advance," I could not prove it because I

had no agreement.

If he would have said, "It's a gift,"
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I could not prove it. If he said, "Schreiber is
coo-coo, I never got anything from him," I couldn't
prove it, because there was no paper in it, and no

witness, Mr. Wolson.

7366 MR. WOLSON: Did you tell that to Mr.
Doucet?

7367 MR. SCHREIBER: Could be, vyes.

7368 MR. WOLSON:

"Look Fred Brian is my friend.

I will do nothing that will hurt
him -- you tell him. We can
come back to this matter later
but we agree on the mandate I
gave him and he accepted. O0.K.
Fred, there is nothing like the
truth do you agree?

Absolutely."

7369 MR. SCHREIBER: Nothing about the
mandate was ever discussed with Fred. It's not my
habit to discuss business with other people.

7370 MR. WOLSON: Look at the bottom of

the page. These are his conclusions:

1. You are hurting for money.
7371 Were you hurting for money?
7372 MR. SCHREIBER: Me?
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MR. WOLSON: Yes.

MR. SCHREIBER: I'm hurting for
money?

MR. WOLSON: Were you short of money?

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON:

"2. - He is getting paid for
his interviews (he let sglip that
he had made $40,000 in one
interview.)"

MR. SCHREIBER: Hang on for a second.
Don't you think that this was related to Mr. Pelossi?

MR. WOLSON: Pelossi?

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah, because it
looks 1like this is all the things which were known
about Mr. Pelossi, because I see here --

MR. WOLSON: ©No, I will tell you
why -- just hold on and I will tell you why it's about
you.

If you look at the second-last one:

"He fervently believes he will
never be extradited."

And the last one:

"He will only settle for some

money from Luc."
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So he is definitely talking about
you.

MR. SCHREIBER: Yeah.

MR. WOLSON: All right.

MR. SCHREIBER: Then it makes no
sense at all to me.

MR. WOLSON: Okay. Did you get paid
for an interview that you gave to one of the news --

I know you have given many news
interviews --

MR. SCHREIBER: No.

MR. WOLSON: -- did you get paid
$40,000 for one interview?

MR. SCHREIBER: No, never ever one

nickel.

MR. WOLSON: I see.

This would be an appropriate time,
it's four o'clock. I do have an amount to go still.

Even if you asked me to continue today, I wouldn't
finish, unless we went well into the evening. It has
been a long day, I am going to suggest that we adjourn
now and come back tomorrow. I will finish with Mr.
Schreiber -- and you will be happy to know this, Mr.
Schreiber -- sometime in the morning, and then others

will have questions, I'm sure.
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If that pleases you, Mr.
Commissioner -- I notice that Mr. Pratte is smiling,
but I am going to ask that we adjourn for the day.
COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: So the good
news for Mr. Schreiber is that you will be finished
with him tomorrow, and the bad news is that Mr. Pratte
will then have a turn.
--- Laughter / Rires
COMMISSIONER OLIPHANT: We will
adjourn today, then, until 9:30 tomorrow morning.
--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 4:02 p.m., to
resume on Thursday, April 16, 2009 at 9:30 a.m. /
L'audience est ajournée a 16 h 02, pour reprendre

le jeudi 16 avril 2009 a 09 h 30
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We hereby certify that we have accurately
transcribed the foregoing to the best of

our skills and abilities.

Nous certifions que ce qui précéde est une
transcription exacte et précise au meilleur

de nos connaissances et de nos compétences.

Bill Curley Jean Desaulniers

Fiona Potvin Sue Villeneuve
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